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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
ERBMERZABERAE ((BRXFT]) GEM 256

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Group. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.

Unless otherwise stated, all monetary figures are expressed in
Singapore dollars. Certain amounts and percentage figures included
in this report have been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly,
figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic
aggregation of the figures preceding them. Expressions used
throughout this annual report have their meanings set out in the
section headed “Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms”.

This report will remain on the website of GEM at www.hkgem.com on
the “Latest Company Announcements” page for at least 7 days from
the date of publication and on the website of the Company at
www.sunlightpaper.com.sg.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for FY2018.

QOur Shares were listed on GEM on 16.4.2018, which was not only a
major milestone in our journey towards excellence but was
exceptionally meaningful as we celebrate our 40th anniversary.

This year, we experienced an unusual and sudden increase in the
price of paper pulp. This increased our cost of inventory. As we have
short term fixed selling price obligations with some of our major
customers, we could not immediately revise our selling prices to
counter the increasing cost of goods sold. This resulted in a lower
gross profit margin compared to previous year.

Further details on the increase in price of paper pulp are discussed in
the Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review —
Cost of sales section in this report.

Paper pulp price should stabilise in 2019. Meanwhile, we had
gradually increased our selling prices throughout FY2018. The full
impact of the price increase would be reflected in FY2019. We also
sourced for tissue products from suppliers with more competitive
pricings. We believe that these factors together with our committed
and performance-focused sales team, would boost our gross profit
margin in FY2019.

PERFORMANCE

Our revenue increased by 11.9% from $12.2 million in FY2017 to
$13.6 million in FY2018. We outperformed Singapore’s 2018 forecast
GDP by 4 times. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable to
increased orders from customers and adjustment to selling prices.
Our image and brand presence in the industry were also bolstered by
the Listing.

Gross profit reduced by 10.8% from $3.5 million in FY2017 to $3.1
million in FY2018. Gross profit margin fell from 28.7% in FY2017 to
22.9% in FY2018. This was attributable to increase in cost of sales,
which in turn was attributable to the increase in pulp prices.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESEE

We incurred a loss of $1.3 million in FY2018, mainly due to Listing
expenses of $2.3 million. Excluding the Listing expenses, our profit
was $1.0 million in FY2018, against profit of $1.5 million in FY2017.
The lower profit in FY2018 was mainly attributable to higher personnel
cost which is in line with the increase in revenue and post Listing
expenses.

PROSPECTS

We are optimistic on the growth of the industry in Singapore. We are
confident in Singapore’s economic development and its strength as a
financial centre, as evidenced by the positive GDP recorded over the
past years. In order to grasp the corresponding opportunities, we
maintain our commitment to continuous growth through leveraging
on our 40-year experience in the industry, building strong ties with
customers and suppliers, and monitoring product quality and product
delivery satisfaction.

We will continue to evaluate development opportunities to strengthen
our competitive advantage and market-leading position. We monitor
new tissue product developments, continue to source for good
quallity tissue paper and tissue products with competitive pricing, and
keep a look out for other tissue-related products.

We are optimistic about achieving sustainable growth and we are
committed to bring greater returns to our Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | express my sincere gratitude to our
management and staff for their hard work and dedication as well as
to our Shareholders and business partners for their support.

Chua Liang Sie

Chairman and Executive Director
Singapore

14.12.2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE WKk DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

We supply tissue products to corporate customers in Singapore. We
provide comprehensive services, ranging from advising the types and
specifications of tissue products, sourcing suitable products,
conducting quality control, delivery of products through our fleet of
delivery trucks, to providing after-sales services.

Our revenue is mainly from the sale of: (i) tissue products, (i) hygiene-
related products, and (iii) other related products.

Our FY2018 revenue was $13.6 million, an increase of 11.9% against
FY2017. The increase was primarily attributable to increased orders
from customers and adjustments to selling prices implemented
throughout FY2018.

We incurred a loss of $1.3 million in FY2018 mainly due to Listing
expenses of $2.3 million. Excluding the Listing expenses, our FY2018
profit was $1.0 million against FY2017 profit of $1.5 million. The lower
profit was mainly attributable to the increase in cost of sales, higher
personnel cost and post Listing expenses.

PROSPECTS

We are optimistic on the growth of the industry in Singapore. A
September 2018 report released by the Monetary Authority of
Singapore forecast a gross domestic product growth of 2.7% in 2019
for Singapore. In order to grasp the corresponding opportunities, we
maintain our commitment to continuous growth through leveraging
on our 40-year experience in the industry, building strong ties with
customers and suppliers, and monitoring product quality and product
delivery satisfaction.

We will continue to evaluate development opportunities to strengthen
our competitive advantage and market-leading position. We monitor
new tissue product developments, continue to source for good
quallity tissue paper and tissue products with competitive pricing, and
keep a look out for other tissue-related products.

We are optimistic about achieving sustainable growth and we are
committed to bring greater returns to our Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt % [B1
Revenue Wiz
Hygiene-
Tissue related
products products Others Total
BEEER FEABER Hit @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Fr Tr Tr
FY2018 018 BFE
Revenue from external customers REINBEPMMER
and reportable segment revenue A2FH PG 12,059 1,187 389 13,635
Segment profit HE A 2,712 372 33 3,117
FY2017 2017 HBEE
Revenue from external customers REINBREMME R
and reportable segment revenue BEEGETE 11,080 97 185 12,186
Segment profit kYl 3,128 363 2 3,493

FY2018 revenue was $13.6 million, representing an increase of $1.4
million or 11.9% against FY2017 revenue of $12.2 million. The
increase was primarily attributable to increased orders from
customers and adjustment to selling prices implemented throughout
FY2018.

° Sales of tissue products increased by $1.0 million, representing
an increase of 9.3%. This was higher than our overall growth
rate of tissue products sales over the past years. The Listing
had bolstered our image and brand presence leading to
increased orders from customers.

° Sales of hygiene-related products increased by $0.2 million,
representing an increase of 22.2%. The higher percentage
increase in sales of hygiene-related products as compared to
tissue products was attributable to our objective to expand our
market share of hygiene-related products. We adopted a
strategic pricing policy for hygiene-related products and
introduced an incentive scheme to the sales team.

° Sales of other products increased by $0.2 million, representing
an increase of 110.3%. This was mainly due to the increase in
sales of dispensers, which was generally in line with the
increase in sales of tissue products.

° Throughout FY2018, we adjusted our selling prices to counter
the increasing cost of inventory. We adopt a cost-plus pricing
policy. However, there was a time lag between the increase in
the cost of inventory and the implementation of new selling
prices. This was due to existing contracted selling prices with
some customers and due to the need to maintain the well-
established business relationship with customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased from $8.7 million to $10.5 million from
FY2017 to FY2018, representing an increase of 21.0%. The overall
increase in cost of sales was due to the increase in the cost of
purchase, which was related to increase in paper pulp price.

Historically, paper pulp price fluctuated gently and gradually.
According to the Producer Prices Indexes by Commodity for paper
pulp released by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, paper pulp price
generally traded within a range from US$170 per ton to US$190 per
ton from 2013 to 2017, with an annual variance of US$5 per ton. In
early 2018, the Group experienced an increase in purchase price of
tissue products and expected to transfer such increase to our
customers gradually, which our Directors do not expect to have any
material adverse impact on our operations and financial performance.

However, by end of FY2018, paper pulp price reached US$220 per
ton, an increase of US$30 per ton in less than 12 months. Such a
sudden and sharp increase was unprecedented and unforeseeable.

The price increase was attributable to the efforts of the Chinese
government to adopt environmentally-friendly policies. Effective from
2018, a ban was imposed on the import of solid wastes, which
include scrap paper, the main raw material for paper pulp.

The ban on scrap paper resulted in a decrease in the supply of paper
pulp, and consequently tissue paper. As the worldwide demand for
tissue paper remained unchanged, this gave rise to increase in paper
pulp price.

Gross Profit

Gross profit reduced by 10.8% from $3.5 million in FY2017 to $3.1
million in FY2018. Gross profit margin fell from 28.7% in FY2017 to
22.9% in FY2018. On the back of the rise in purchase cost, the
Group pushed for more orders and adjusted selling price further. This
resulted in additional sales growth of 3 percentage points in the
second half of FY2018, reaching an annual sales growth of 11.9% for
FY2018. Notwithstanding the Group’s valiant efforts, this was
insufficient to counter the increase in paper pulp price in FY2018.

SUNLIGHT (1977) HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

B 7% Bl B ()

BHE BN

85 & B AN 2017 8 IX 4 /E /98,700,000 7T, 1%
21.0% % 2018 8 I 4 € #910,500,000 7T © $ &
BRAREREIER T RN EER AN - &
ERAE AR EARA)_ERIRE -

BT MEEREERT - RIEEZBLEHRD
BROBREEEMEIES - R2013F £2017
F o fF—RESWI7T0ETTESW190ETH
HEANRS  FERIEAESWESEIT - N 20184
7 AEEEEGEERERBEEERIEN - WiE
HESLHEAREERTEP EFHEHEHR
M EE RV BRATNGHEERMEBRTFTE

SR M2018 B L E K -
2203 7T - 128 A RIGhNENE30ETT -
AIEIEINBIFTARE B RBETAR ©

AR ERER B
AR

B ERERNPEBNS DREREREER - 8

2018 /8 » 25 | FERERE D - BIREEAR - M
HEMENESRR -

REARSES B R TR - R AR
BTH - MR BEHEEDERRAETE
SR EG LT -

EH

EF F 2017 B BUAF E 89 3,500,000 7T T % 10.8%
Z 2018 B/ FE /93,100,000 7T © #A T + EF| =
2017 M EE#128.7% N E 2018 B FE

#]22.9% ° E%Aﬁ$t%mﬁg C REER
EEZEEYE—F EE - EEH20185

EA{EF‘T#EE’J%%%EPEMIE 2B 722018
HRFENTFEHSIEREN11.9% REASE
EEREERE S - BTRUIKE 20180 BFE
AR ER RN E -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased by $0.2 million, or 18.6%, from $1.1
million in FY2017 to $1.3 million in FY2018. The increase was
primarily attributable to overall increase in salaries, the commissions
paid to the sales team as an incentive to expand the hygiene-related
products market and increase in cost of delivery of products to
customers, which was in line with the overall increase in revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately $0.4 million or
49.5%, from $0.8 million in FY2017 to $1.1 million in FY2018. The
increase was primarily due to the appointment of a Chief Financial
Officer, general increase in salaries and related costs, and post Listing
expenses.

Listing Expenses
Listing expenses were $0.7 million and $2.3 million in FY2017 and
FY2018 respectively.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses reduced from $0.3 million in FY2017 to $0.1
million in FY2018 due to lower estimated chargeable income in
FY2018. Chargeable income excludes expenses that are not
deductible for tax purposes, such as Listing expenses.

Result for the Year

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company was $1.3
million in FY2018, compared to a profit of $0.7 million for FY2017.
The loss in FY2018 included one-off Listing expenses of $2.3 million.
Excluding one-off Listing expenses, the profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company for FY2018 was $1.0 million against profit of
$1.5 million in FY2017. This represents a decrease of $0.5 million or
34.4% against FY2017, mainly due to increase in cost of sales and
administration expenses.
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2018 8F Bk & € #9 100,000 7T + Jb M A 2018 Bf X
FEMGTERBIRAR D - BRBMATEIE
TABIFA Y - Bl LR e

FERE

R2018HEE » ARRIERFHE ABEEHR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE WKk DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30.9.2018, the Group had total assets of $18.3 million (2017:
$13.4 million), which is financed by total liabilities of $4.0 million (2017:
$5.3 million) and shareholders’ equity (comprising share capital, share
premium and reserves) of $14.3 million (2017: $8.0 million). The
current ratio as at 30.9.2018 of the Group was 4.2 times (2017: 1.4
times).

Trade debtor and trade creditor turnover in FY2018 were 55.6 days
(2017: 54.4 days) and 54.2 days (2017: 66.8 days) respectively.

In FY2018, the Group raised net proceeds of $4.6 million from the
Share Offer. The Group used net cash of $0.1 million for operations.

As at 30.9.2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of $7.7
million (2017: $3.1 million) which were placed with major banks in
Singapore and Hong Kong.

The total interest-bearing finance leases and bank borrowings of the
Group as at 30.9.2018 was $0.4 million (2017: $0.1 million). The
gearing ratio (calculated based on interest-bearing liabilities divided
by total equity) of the Group as of 30.9.2018 was 3.0% (2017: 1.7%).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group transacts mainly in Singapore dollars, which is the
functional currency of all the Group’s operating subsidiaries. The
Group retained a large part of its proceeds from the Share Offer in
Hong Kong dollars which amounted to $6.8 million as at 30.9.2018.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this report, the Group did
not have other plans for material investments or capital assets as of
30.9.2018.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

In FY2018, the Group did not have any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures save for those
related to the reorganisation (details disclosed under Note 2(a) to the
financial statements).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Significant Investments Held
The Group did not hold any significant investments in FY2018.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

In FY2018, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30.9.2018, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 30.9.2018, the Group committed $0.1 million to purchase a
truck to replace an existing truck which would be scrapped in
December 2018 when its operating certificate expires.

Employee Information
As at 30.9.2018, the Group had an aggregate of 30 employees (2017:
30).

The employees of the Group are remunerated according to their job
scope and responsibilities. All employees are also entitled to
discretionary bonus depending on their respective performance.

Total staff costs in FY2018, including Directors’ emoluments,
amounted to $1.7 million (2017: $1.4 million).

The Group did not experience any significant problem with our
employees or disruptions to our operations due to labour disputes,
nor did the Group experience any difficulty in the recruitment and
retention of experienced employees. The Group continues to maintain
a good relationship with our employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE WKk DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual
Business Progress and Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the Share Offer were $4.6 million, which was
based on the gross proceeds from the Share Offer less the actual
expenses related to the Listing. Subsequent to the Listing, these
proceeds will be used for the purposes in accordance with the future
plans as set out below:

As disclosed in

B & E B (@)
¥EEELERERERBEMSTN
THF#R AL

RIERMDEEMEFBLBRAEBHE LT ZER
FX et & - B 3 & FT 15 30IE % #8 /% 4,600,000
To e M ETE - ZEMEHRERSIRE T AH
ZARRETEIFER

Use of proceeds
FERERE
Planned use of
proceedsto  Actual use of
30.9.2018 proceeds from
Percentage of  asdisclosed  Listing Day to

Prospectus  AtListingDay  netproceeds in Prospectus 30.9.2018

ARER
FrEBaz BLWRE
2018%9A30H 201859A30H

RERE FigmA WHEHE WEETE
BFRE REWA RERDL fHERg ERREZ
Description HK$'000 $$000 $$000 S§000
T FHMET FHIMET FHmET
Upgrade our conversion ling forthe £ EXBE 4 BB
production of jumbo roll tissue 6,200 940 20.7% 273 -
Acquire anew conversion line for the BB — @B L ER T4
production of hand towels 1,300 197 4.3% 197 -
Invest in an additional factory building in - REF LR EEEZ—EIH
Singapore to be used as our REEREZBUR
warehouse and purchase delivery BEEENEERE
trucks and lifting equipment 19,500 2,958 65.0% - -
Working capital and other general SEAAR AN -REERE
corporate purposes 3,000 455 10.0% 162 152
Total Bt 30,000 4,550 100.0% 622 162
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual
Business Progress and Use of Proceeds (Continued)
As at 30.9.2018, there has not yet been material business progress in

respect of business objectives set out in the Prospectus. The

unutilised net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing deposits

with a licensed bank in Singapore.

Implementation plan
as disclosed in Prospectus

BRERFMBENER:E

Scheduled activities for

the period from 1.4.2018 to
30.9.2018 as disclosed in

the Prospectus
BRERMKENR2018F4A10Z
201859 B30 H MM AEED

B 7 BB ()
EBEGELREREBERRMEN
HAZERLLER @)

MR20184F9A30H * BB ERRATHER B IZ
ME > BE2018F9 A0 KREEAEBHER -
KRB FTIS B R S E I A5 K SR AT TR I
BEE BT -

Actual activities achieved for the period from
1.4.2018 to 30.9.2018

R2018%E4 1B E2018F 9 A 30 HHI MM ERZE

Upgrade our conversion line for
the production of jumbo roll
tissues

FHREERSEKBEANEIRR

Acquire a new production line for
the production of hand towels

BE-GREERLERTAR

Downpayment of 30% of the
purchase price for the new
tissue rewinder

BN SEATRELAERS
BIBE(B30%

Purchase of machinery for the
new conversion line for the
production of hand towels and
payment of associated costs
including freight, insurance and
installation

Installation of the machinery for
the new conversion line

Trial run
REERFRONERGHEER
B R TR - BiEER -
Rig K&k

L E AT R P FA MRS

AE

Obtained quotations from suppliers

Considered additional components to enable the
conversion line to produce JRT from a wider range
of tissue paper, particularly in view of the high
paper pulp price

EEHERRE

EZRFEIMAY - BERGEE B EEE BN
FMEERESREER  FRIRENETER

= =
&) £0

Obtained quotations from suppliers
Considered more models of machinery of the
production of hand towels from more suppliers
The new machinery needed to convert hand
towels from a wider range of tissue paper,
particularly in view of the high paper pulp price

REHERRE
ERBEZHERRBESRTALEKSIL
i

MR FEEREEEEOHERBRRTA
Frhl 2 ENRRERSS

2018 % / B (1977) ERBIRDF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B 75 [ R ()
Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual EBEELREREBERRMEN
Business Progress and Use of Proceeds (Continued) TBRER LR ()

Scheduled activities for
the period from 1.4.2018 to

Implementation plan 30.9.2018 as disclosed in Actual activities achieved for the period from

as disclosed in Prospectus the Prospectus 1.4.2018 to 30.9.2018
BRERMKER2018F4A10Z

BRRERMKENE RS 20189 B30 H MM AEED M2018F4 A1 BZE20185F 9 530 H MM EKRES

Invest in an additional factory o Continue to identify suitable o Contacted commercial property agents to source
building in Singapore to be used sites and liaising with property for suitable factories for sale — principally about
as our warehouse and purchase agents regarding purchase of 3,000 sg.m. and in Tuas area, near to the Group’s
delivery trucks and lifting suitable sites present operating premises
equipment o Shortlisting the suitable site to ~ ® Regularly reviewed local newspapers’

be acquired advertisement sections for suitable factories for

sale

o Regularly drove around Tuas premises to look for
suitable factories available for sale

J As at 30.9.2018, the factories available were
usually too large, far from Tuas, or beyond the
Group’s budget

J At 30.9.18, no suitable sites available to be
shortlisted

o Explored other options, including extending the
factory by adding another floor (see analysis below
for details)

PRI ERER —EIHMAE o SENEREELTHBESE GRERENERERSRAENTELR — 20

FEBEZAUREEEERBER saﬂtéﬁ%%&i@%ﬁﬁ 3,000 F 7K RAIA Tuas @ (MBI A B R AL
1 . PRI A EE i)
. FEHR B A mAREE 2D - USHREBEHOAF
EIH
. FEHR Tuas EFTEEFE - UEKAENEES
TR
e 2018 QHA30H AIEIMEEAKLN B
BTuas KRB AEEEE
. EA2018$9530E1 WEBSAIABENE
HiGH

s RRHEMFNR SREENE—(ERERET
B (FEB R T XX OHT)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual
Business Progress and Use of Proceeds (Continued)
The Group explored other options and one of the options that meets
the Group’s requirements appeared to be to expand the factory by
adding another floor. This requires approval from at least three
Singapore authorities, in the following sequence:

B & E B (@)
¥EEELERERERBEMEN
THRABH L (#)
FEBDRREMTR  HP—BHAAEEE
KB RUT2BBME—BIEEEE IR - &
EEQELF M= EEBBPIHE  JEFD
—F :

Name of authority

ek

Responsibility
BE

Status of approvals as at 30.9.2018
120184 9 A 30 H W EHLARKE

Urban Redevelopment Authority
(HURAU)

meEgR(MmEERR))

Singapore Land Authority (“SLA”)

gt ERER((THERRB])

Building and Construction Authority
(HBCA)!)

gRB(ERR]

Grants approval for changes to GFA

HE B R E TR

Upon URA approval, determines the
one-time upfront development charge
(“DC”) payable for the additional GFA
applied, and such DC is determined
on a case-by-case basis
THRERBIER  ETHPENE
SNEEmEREMNE — R R R E
(TBERWE )  MAMERERKETZE
RS E

Upon SLA confirmation of payment of
DC, approves the building plans, to
ensure that the as-built plans for the
entire factory (not just the expansion)
comply with the latest applicable
construction and building laws

L ERRERERRENRE
HEREERATE - UHERBEIRRT
(WIERBEREHD) FaRMERE
Briget e

Granted provisional approval to the
Group’s application to extend the
factory’s GFA

ERAEREERER THRELmER P

2
AR

As at 30.9.2018, SLA has not
determined the quantum of DC and
consequently, the Group is not able to
carry out a feasibility study on this
option at this time

M2018F9A30H » +iEEBI K
ErERKENSH B AEEBR
REEBLUL 7 ZREITAIAT I 5T

As at 30.9.2018, building plans are
being drawn by the Group’s architect,
and subsequent to approval by BCA,

the Group would then be advised on the

estimated construction costs

MR20184F 9 A30H » AREE M LD
BRHEEARE  KERBIbER -
NEEASEE MEHTIRERA

The Group believes that in the 6 months subsequent to 30.9.2018,
the necessary approvals and costings would be available. Thereafter,
the Group would carry out a feasibility study to determine whether to
proceed with this option. In the meantime, the Group would continue
to search for suitable factories in the Tuas area.

At the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any change
to the principal plan as to the use of proceeds.

RNEBMEE - R 2018F 9 A30 HIX & 618 A A
BEVEERKAZE - & AERKET
AITHAR  UEEEEETHAE - HItRA
B AEBEBHER TuasBS KA BN TH -

WS B - B S REM BT
BT EA RS -

2018 % / B (1977) ERBIRDF
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERSREERE/BN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chua Liang Sie, aged 59, is our executive Director, Chairman and
chief executive officer of our Company, who joined our Group in July
1982. He was appointed as our Director on 21.9.2017, and was re-
designated as our executive Director and was also appointed as our
Chairman and chief executive officer on 30.10.2017. Mr. LS Chua is
responsible for formulating the overall strategies and planning of our
Group.

Mr. LS Chua has over 35 years of experience in the tissue product
industry for corporate customers. In July 1982, Mr. LS Chua joined
Sunlight Paper as production manager, where he was responsible for
the production of conventional roll tissue, and was also appointed as
a director of Sunlight Paper. He became the managing director of
Sunlight Paper in February 1990 and since then, he is responsible for
the business strategies, planning and management of Sunlight Paper.
Mr. LS Chua completed secondary education in Singapore in 1975.

Mr. LS Chua is the younger brother of Ms. Chua and elder brother of
Mr. LC Chua, and the father of Mr. WH Chua.

Ms. Chua Joo Gek, aged 63, is our executive Director, who joined our
Group in July 1977. Ms. Chua was appointed as Director on 21.9.2017
and was re-designated as our executive Director on 30.10.2017. Ms.
Chua is responsible for the overall operations of our Group.

Ms. Chua has over 40 years of experience in the tissue product
industry for corporate customers. Ms. Chua joined Sunlight Paper as
warehouse supervisor and was appointed as a director of Sunlight
Paper in July 1977. From October 1982 to September 2005, she
served as administration manager. Since October 2005, Ms. Chua
has been the operations director of Sunlight Paper and is responsible
for the operations of Sunlight Paper. Ms. Chua completed primary
education in Singapore in 1967.

Ms. Chua is the elder sister of Mr. LS Chua and Mr. LC Chua and the
aunt of Mr. WH Chua.

Mr. Chua Liang Chui, aged 57, is our executive Director and sales
director, who joined our Group in July 1982. He was appointed as
Director on 21.9.2017 and was redesignated as our executive
Director on 30.10.2017. He is responsible for sales and marketing of
our Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREEE/BN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LC Chua has over 30 years of experience in the tissue product
industry for corporate customers. Mr. LC Chua joined Sunlight Paper
as logistics manager and was appointed as a director of Sunlight
Paper in July 1982. In October 1996, he was promoted to be
warehouse manager, and he served as sales manager in Sunlight
Paper from October 2006 to September 2010. Since October 2010,
Mr. LC Chua has been the sales director of Sunlight Paper and is
responsible for sales and marketing of our products for Sunlight
Paper. Mr. LC Chua completed secondary education in Singapore in
1977.

Mr. LC Chua is the younger brother of Ms. Chua and Mr. LS Chua
and uncle of Mr. WH Chua.

Mr. Chua Wenhao, aged 34, is our executive Director and deputy
chief executive officer, who joined our Group in September 2013. He
was appointed as Director on 21.9.2017. On 30.10.2017, he was re-
designated as our executive Director and was appointed as the
deputy chief executive officer. He is responsible for assisting the chief
executive officer and implementing strategies of our Group.

Mr. WH Chua joined as sales manager of Sunlight Paper in
September 2013 and was responsible for sales of products for
Sunlight Paper. Prior to joining our Group, from November 2010 to
June 2012, Mr. WH Chua worked at HSBC in the HSBC Graduate
Internship Programme. Mr. WH Chua obtained a bachelor’s degree in
business management from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
University in August 2010.

Mr. WH Chua is the son of Mr. LS Chua and the nephew of Ms. Chua
and Mr. LC Chua.

BITEE @)
BRBEENCETPEHEREMERTRB0F
KB o 2R P A N19824F 7 A hi A Sunlight
Paper I #1743 » ¥ Z 1T 4 Sunlight Paper
H) E = o R1996F 108 % & F+ A Sunlight
Paper #) 8 E 4312 - WH 2006 F 10 A Z20104F
9 A BRI ELIR - H2010F 10 AL - ER
5 A4 HE T Sunlight Paper 9 88 & 8 85 - & & 14
£ I & 5 Sunlight PaperfE T E @ © 22 R P 4E
977 FAEFT I TR R B2 E -

ERPAERELLIRERBREENBIEREX
IR o

BIUERE 3458 BITESERENTTRAER - 1
2013F9AMARERE - FR2017F9H21H
BRI ASE 4R 2017F10 30 B ATHT
EE - WEZTRRTREH - HABEBITK
BERITASEE RS -

F S H 72201349 A HA Sunlight Paper #&
TSHELIE - 8 F Sunlight Paper E MRS E T1E °
MAREBAT  EXELXER2010FMAE
20126 HBMESRITER £t 8l RELIRTT
WM o BUERAER2010F 8 AR AZRE
T K £ (Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
University) i85 R £ E B 2247 o
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERSREERE/BN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Teo Beng Fwee (“Mr. Teo”), aged 61, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21.3.2018. He is the chairman
of our Remuneration Committee and a member of our Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Teo has over 35 years of experience in assurance, tax and
consulting industry. Since February 2015, he has been a director of
CA Practice PAC, an accounting firm based in Singapore.

Mr. Teo is an independent non-executive director of Eggriculture
Foods Ltd., a company listed on GEM (stock code: 8609) since
August 2018.

Mr. Teo was admitted as an associate and a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in July 1985 and in July 1990,
respectively. He is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants since December 1997 and a fellow member of the
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants since September 2009.

Mr. Yeo Hai Thong Michael (“Mr. Yeo”), aged 52, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 21.3.2018. He is a
member of our Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yeo has over 20 years of experience in marketing and has retired
since September 2013.

Mr. Yeo graduated from The National University of Singapore with a
bachelor degree in engineering in July 1991. He obtained a graduate
diploma in marketing from the Marketing Institute of Singapore in April
1995.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREEE/BN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Law Kin Ho (“Mr. Law”), aged 51, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21.3.2018. He is the chairman
of our Audit Committee.

Mr. Law has over 25 years of experience in accounting, financial
management and compliance. Since December 1999, he has been
working as a sole practising accountant at his own accounting firm,
Kevin Law & Co..

Mr. Law is an independent non-executive director of Lai Fung
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board (stock code:
1125) since March 2009 and has been an independent non-executive
director of Creative China Holdings Limited, a company listed on
GEM (stock code: 8368) from 3.11.2015 to 18.7.2018.

Mr. Law was admitted as an associate and a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in November 1992
and in November 1997 respectively. He is also an associate and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in July 1993 and May 2000, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choy Tuck Leong (“Mr. Choy”), aged 53, joined our Group in
July 2017 and is our chief financial officer and one of our joint
company secretaries. Mr. Choy is responsible for overseeing the
overall corporate and financial matters of our Group.

Mr. Choy has approximately 30 years of experience in audit and
corporate finance. Mr. Choy obtained a bachelor’s degree of
accountancy from The National University of Singapore in June 1988.
He is a member and a fellow chartered accountant of the Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants since December 1992 and
November 2004, respectively. He is also a fellow certified public
accountant of CPA Australia since January 2010.

Ms. See Ai Kiok (“Ms. See”), aged 58, joined our Group in October
2009 as accounts executive. Ms. See is the head of human resources
of Sunlight Paper since October 2014. She is responsible for human
resources, accounts and administrative matters. Ms. See has over 25
years of experience in accounting and human resources. She
completed the London Chamber of Commerce and Industry
International Qualifications course in 1980.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERSREERE/BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Goh Kuang Song (“Mr. Goh”), aged 53, joined our Group as
warehouse manager in December 1993. Mr. Goh is the head of
logistics of Sunlight Paper since October 2006. Mr. Goh, has over 20
years of experience in logistics and is responsible for managing
warehouse and logistics matters.

Mr. Yong Ning Choy (“Mr. Yong”), aged 47, joined our Group as
machine operator in June 1998 and he is the head of production of
Sunlight Paper since October 2007. Mr. Yong has over 15 years of
experience in production and is responsible for overseeing production
of our tissue products.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Choy, one of our joint company secretaries, was appointed on
4.10.2017. He is also a member of our senior management.

Ms. Yeung, Josephine Yan (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 37, one of our
joint company secretaries, was appointed on 4.10.2017. Ms. Yeung
has approximately 15 years of experience in auditing, financial
management, internal control and corporate governance. Since May
2017, she has been practising in Noble Partners CPA Company, a
certified public accountants firm in Hong Kong.

Ms. Yeung graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 2003 with a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting degree. She is a member and fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since February
2007 and February 2012, respectively. Ms. Yeung is also a member
and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since February 2008 and October 2017, respectively, and is a
practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. WH Chua is our compliance officer. He is also an executive
Director. Please see Executive Directors section for Mr. WH Chua’s
quallifications and experience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential for
efficient and effective management of our business to safeguard the
interest of our stakeholders and achieve the highest return for our
Shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG
Code. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
the CG Code in FY2018 from the Listing Date, except for Code
Provision A.2.1. The reason for deviation is explained subsequently in
this report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. LS Chua is the chairman of our
Board and also the chief executive officer of our Company. Since
February 1990, Mr. LS Chua has been the key leadership figure of
our Group who has been primarily involved in the formulation of
business strategies and determination of the overall direction of our
Group. He is also responsible for overseeing our Group’s operations
and directly supervises our senior management. Having considered
that (i) Mr. LS Chua’s contribution and familiarity with the operations
of our Group which is beneficial to the management and business
development of our Group, (ii) major decisions are made in
consultation with members of the Board and relevant Board
committees, and (iii) there are three independent non-executive
Directors on our Board offering independent perspectives, our Board
is of the view that there is an appropriate balance of powers and
authorities between our Board and the management of our Company
and that it is in the interest of our Group to have Mr. LS Chua to
continue taking up both roles. Our Board will continue to review and
consider separation of the roles of the chairman of our Board and the
chief executive officer as and when appropriate by taking into account
the circumstances of our Group as a whole.
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REQUIRED STANDARD OF DEALINGS FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Required Standard of Dealings and
the Company had made specific enquiries with all the Directors and
each of them had confirmed his/her compliance with the Required
Standard of Dealings in FY2018.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

In order to maintain a clear delineation of the businesses between our
Group and our Controlling Shareholders, the latter have entered into
the Deed of Non-competition in favour of our Company (for ourselves
and as trustee for each of our subsidiaries from time to time) to the
effect that each of them will not, and will procure each of their
respective close associates not to, directly or indirectly participate in,
or hold any right or interest, or otherwise be involved in any business
which may be in competition with our businesses.

For details of the Deed of Non-competition, please refer to the section
headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders — Deed of
Non-competition” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received a written confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders that they have complied with the terms of the Deed of
Non-Competition in FY2018. The independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed the status of compliance and written
confirmation from the Controlling Shareholders, and noted that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by each of the Controlling Shareholders in FY2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the
Board which assumes the responsibility of leadership and control of
the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Group.

The Board formulates strategies and sets directions for the Group’s
activities to develop its business and enhance Shareholders’ value.
The Board also assumes the responsibilities for maintaining high
standard of corporate governance, including among others, reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance, and
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board has established board committees with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees’ authority
and duties. Details of the respective committee’s terms of reference
are available at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board for significant
transactions.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors of
which four are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chua Liang Sie (Chairman)

Ms. Chua Joo Gek

Mr. Chua Liang Chui

Mr. Chua Wenhao (alias Cai Wenhao)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Teo Beng Fwee

Mr. Yeo Hai Thong Michael

Mr. Law Kin Ho

B
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

From the Listing Date up to the date of this report, there was no
change in the composition of the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” of this report.

The family relationship between the Directors (where applicable) are
set out under the respective names of the Directors in the section
headed “Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms” of this report.

Throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, accounting for at least one-third of the Board,
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent non-
executive Directors has submitted a written statement to the Stock
Exchange confirming their independence. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Board considers that all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent and meet the requirements set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation within the Group and
leading the Group to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances.

The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include (1) the preparation of quarterly, interim
and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval
before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Roles and Responsibility of the Board (Continued)

It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are in place
to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.

Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual
results. Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in
advance to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14
days’ notice is given for a regular Board meeting. All Directors are
given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
The Joint Company Secretaries assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings to comply with all applicable rules and
regulations. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to Directors at least three days before the intended date
of a Board meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are
circulated to Directors for their comment before being tabled at the
next Board meeting for approval. The minutes are kept by the Joint
Company Secretaries and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members

The Directors’ attendance in Board and Committee meetings from
Listing Date to the date of this report is as follows:
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BTERAR

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board committee committee committee

Director meeting meeting meeting meeting
gz EXE8ER EVZESER VYMNEEEEE REZEEER
Mr. Chua Liang Sie BRERAE 3/3 n/aTE 2/2 1/1
Ms. Chua Joo Gek ERMELT 3/3 n/a M iE A n/a i F n/a i
Mr. Chua Liang Chui ERPKE 33 n/aTiE R n/a /MM n/a/NEfA
Mr. Chua Wenhao (alias Cai Wenhao) BIUELE 3/3 n/aMER n/a i f n/a N F
Mr. Teo Beng Fwee REABLE 3/3 4/4 2/2 11
Mr. Yeo Hai Thong Michael HERLE 3/3 4/4 2/2 11
Mr. Law Kin Ho RERKE 3/3 4/4 n/a T iEH n/aiEf

No general meeting of the Company has been held in FY2018 after
Listing.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive Directors have entered into service agreements with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing sent by either party to the other.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has accepted his
appointment with the Company with an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board as an essential element to improving governance and
performance, and to creating a competitive advantage. In designing
the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are made
on merit, in the context of the skills, experience, independence and
knowledge which the Board as a whole requires to be effective.

Directors’ Training and Continuing Professional
Development

Directors are aware of Code Provision A.6.5 regarding continuing
professional development programme for directors. Every director is
required to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. In
FY2018, all Directors participated in the training regarding director
responsibilities and duties provided by the Company’s legal advisers.
The training covered corporate governance, listed company and
director’s continuing obligations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three Board Committees. Each committee
has its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on matters
within their respective terms of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

We have established an Audit Committee on 21.3.2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of our
Audit Committee include (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of external auditors; (ii) reviewing
and supervising the financial statements and material advice in
respect of financial reporting; (iii) overseeing internal control
procedures and corporate governance of our Company; (iv)
supervising internal control and risk management systems of our
Group; and (v) monitoring continuing connected transactions (if any).
Our Audit Committee consists of Mr. Teo, Mr. Yeo and Mr. Law. Mr.
Law is the chairman of our Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee met with the management and the external
auditor, where relevant, to review the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal
controls, and financial reporting matters including the following:

° the review of the financial reports of FY2018;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for
reappointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

° the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the external
auditors.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members” of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

We have established a Remuneration Committee on 21.3.2018 in
compliance with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules and with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties of our Remuneration Committee include (i) reviewing and
making recommendations to our Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of our Group; (ii) reviewing other remuneration-related matters,
including benefits-in-kind and other compensation payable to our
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing performance
based remunerations and establishing a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policies. Our Remuneration
Committee consists of Mr. LS Chua, Mr. Teo and Mr. Yeo. Mr. Teo is
the chairman of our Remuneration Committee.

The Group’s remuneration policy is structured to attract and retain
high quality staff and to enable smooth operation. The Group offered
competitive remuneration packages which considered factors such
as corporate result, individual capability and performance, salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities
and employment conditions. The remuneration packages are subject
to review on a regular basis.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
eligible persons, details are set out under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” of this annual report.

During the period from Listing Date to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee met twice, to review and subsequently to
approve the remuneration package of the executive Directors and
senior management for FY2018.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior management
depends on their employment contracts and includes basic salary
and performance bonus. Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG
Code, the remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for FY2018 is set out below:

FHMZEEE @)
ERNEREBABNFHIVAREEFEL - I
BEEERTERKRBIELA - RECEEATA
FBASE  R2018BUFEIZE AR & D 2
SREEABFHEIOT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band 48 51 A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 7 1,000,000 7T 4

The remuneration payable to the Directors depends on their
respective contractual terms under the service contracts or the
appointment letters (as the case may be), and as recommend by the
Remuneration Committee, taking into account the Group’s operating
results, market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement. Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for FY2018

are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors to
Committee Members” of this report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

We have established a Nomination Committee on 21.3.2018 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5.2 of the
CG Code. The primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on
a regular basis; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (jii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors; and (v) make recommendations to our Board regarding the
candidates to fill vacancies on our Board. Our Nomination Committee
consists of Mr. LS Chua, Mr. Teo and Mr. Yeo. Mr. LS Chua is the
chairman of our Nomination Committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee met to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and concluded that members of the Board
possessed the expertise and independence to carry out the Board’s
functions and responsibilities.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors to
Committee Members” of this report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that (i)
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently,
(i) judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable, and
(iii) statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards have
been adopted and complied with.

As at 30.9.2018, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements for FY2018 on a
going-concern basis. The financial statements for FY2018 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by the external
auditors, Foo Kon Tan LLP. A statement by the external auditor about
their reporting responsibility is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group considering the size, nature and geography
of the Group’s business. The Directors are responsible for formulating
and overseeing the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control measures. An annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
will be conducted. The review will cover all material controls, including
financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls.

In preparation for the Listing, we engaged an internal control
consultant, an independent third party, to undertake a review of the
internal control system of the Group. Material issues identified by the
internal control consultant had been rectified prior to the Listing. The
Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control
systems in place are adequate and effective to safeguard the interest
of Shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Foo Kon Tan LLP (“FKT LLP”) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 29.8.2018 to hold office until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

Reference is made to the company information sheet of the Company
published on 13.4.2018. The Company wishes to clarify that KPMG
LLP was the joint reporting accountants of the Company for the
preparation of the Listing and for the preparation of the financial
statements in the Prospectus. The Company did not have
engagement with any auditor until the appointment of FKT LLP as the
auditor of the Company. FKT LLP audit fee for FY2018 was $35,000.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. Choy Tuck Leong and Ms. Yeung, Josephine Yan are the joint

company secretaries as appointed pursuant to Rule 5.14 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Their biographical details are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this report.

The joint company secretaries support the Board by ensuring timely
information flow to and within the Board, and monitoring adherence
to Board policies and procedures, including the training and
continuous professional development of Directors. They also guide
the Board on corporate governance matters and facilitate the
induction of new Directors. The joint company secretaries have
attained not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the
financial year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates with Shareholders and investors mainly
in the following ways:

(i) convening general meetings at least once a financial year
whereby Shareholders and investors could communicate
directly with the Board;

(i)  publishing quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements
and/or circulars as required under the GEM Listing Rules and/
or press releases to provide updated information on the Group;
and

(i)  updating the Company’s website with the latest information on
the Group.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting
Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, any shareholder(s)
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must state the
purpose(s) of the extraordinary general meeting, and (ii) must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of
the Company for attention of the Company Secretary of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more requisitionist(s). Such requisitions will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting by serving sufficient notice to all shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionist(s) will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
extraordinary general meeting will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may convene an
extraordinary general meeting, but any extraordinary general meeting
so convened shall not be held after expiration of two months from the
said date of deposit of the requisition. An extraordinary general
meeting convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any extraordinary
general meeting to be convened by the Board.

Right to Put Forward Proposals at General Meeting
To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal with his/
her detailed contact information at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Right to Make Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns, in written form,
to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary at 13/F,
Wah Yuen Building, 149 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general
meeting of the Company. In addition, shareholders can contact
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, if they have any
enquiries about their shareholdings and entitiements to dividend.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from Listing Date to 30.9.2018, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents. The
Articles of Association of the Company are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 30.9.2018, as notified by the Company’s compliance adviser,
Giraffe Capital Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”) except for the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the Company
and the Compliance Adviser dated 9.11.2017, neither the Compliance
Adviser nor any of its directors, employees or close associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in the Group
which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rules
B6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining effective communication with
the investment industry is crucial to having a deeper understanding of
the Company’s business and its development among investors. To
achieve this goal and increase transparency, the Company will
continue to adopt proactive measures to foster better investor
relations and communications. As such, the purpose for the
Company to formulate investor relations policies is to let investors
have access to the information of the Group in a fair and timely
manner, so that they can make an informed decision.

We welcome investors to write to the Company or send their enquiries
to the Company’s email of investor_relation@sunlightpaper.com.sg to
share their opinions with the Board. The Company’s website also
discloses the latest business information of the Group to investors
and the public.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for FY2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the supply of tissue products to
corporate customers in Singapore. Further discussion and analysis of
these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance, including an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Details of the principal
risks and uncertainties of the Group are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements. These form part of this directors’
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the Group’s total

HEKEEAYES L
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer BRARF 14.2%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREF&E 33.4%
The largest supplier A ER 46.6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate RAREEREET 94.2%

At no time during the financial year have the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for
the financial year.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in Shares during the financial year are set
out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. Shares were
issued during the financial year arising from the Reorganisation, the
Share Offer and the Capitalisation Issue, as defined in the Prospectus.
Details about the issue of Shares are also set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual report, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities from the Listing
Date to the end of the financial year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30.9.2018, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution, as calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, was $7.6 million.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and at the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Chua Liang Sie (Chairman) (appointed on 21.9.2017)

Chua Joo Gek (appointed on 21.9.2017)

Chua Liang Chui (appointed on 21.9.2017)

Chua Wenhao (alias Cai Wenhao) (appointed on 21.9.2017)

Independent non-executive Directors
Teo Beng Fwee (appointed on 21.3.2018)

Yeo Hai Thong Michael (appointed on 21.3.2018)
Law Kin Ho (appointed on 21.3.2018)

Pursuant to the Articles, at each general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director shall be
eligible for re-election.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date and will continue thereafter until terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement. Independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years and
will continue thereafter unless terminated by either party giving at
least three months’ notice in writing.
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DIRECTORS (Continued) BEEw

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election has a service IR ERE (T EEHHADNRE AR —F
contract with the Company not terminable by the Company within ~ RENFEE CEEEERIN) 2B T EIEZ R
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory — #&#) »

compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEERTETHAERREAQATRME
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE {AfEEtENR% - RO RE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND EENERE KA

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30.9.2018, interests or short positions of the Directors and chief 7R 2018%F9 A30H * AR A EER T BITHA
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and B WA A w1k H A #HECEE (T REB A6
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations 571 E&E %5 REAE RN ([ 5 REEEN ) E
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures  XVZ) &Rk - MHERD REEED - EAC D
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) as  $kAIRIEE 5 L B G HI R 352 (RFAZETFE & 7L
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the i LB IEGEM F TR B F5.46 £ 5.67 16 M<
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock AAQATRBIAERSOAEINT

Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,

were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the Company: RAR BN BT A
Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
ordinary Shares shares held Total number  the total issued
held under equity of Shares share capital
Name Capacity Nature of interests (Note 1) derivatives interested (%)
MRAESTE ERTRA
s ERYE IAfEHEE RERERN ABHNESL
B &% BEME (H&E1) RABE ROEE (%)
Mr. Chua Liang Sie (Note 2) A concert party to an agreement Deemed Interest 576,000,000 (L) - 576,000,000 72

oL S EY) to buy shares described in Rl aER

s.317(1)(a) of the SFO
F5 RBERBIZE317(1)(6) &
PR RN - BTPHAL
Ms. Chua Joo Gek (Note 2) A concert party to an agreement Deemed Interest 576,000,000 (L) - 576,000,000 72
2Tt (Miz2) to buy shares described in RiERaER
s.317(1)(a) of the SFO
ESRBERDE37(1)@) 15
PR BEN—BTPHAL

Mr. Chua Liang Chui (Note 2) A concert party to an agreement Deemed Interest 576,000,000 (1) - 576,000,000 72
BE LA (HE2) to buy shares described in RiESAER

s.317(1)(a) of the SFO
EHRBEEBIZE17(1)(e) 15
FritERBEN-BTPAL
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Long Positions in Shares of the Company: (Continued)

Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. YJH Group Limited is owned as to approximately 37.93% by Mr. Chua
Liang Sie, 17.24% by Ms. Chua Joo Gek, 17.24% by Mr. Chua Liang
Chui and 27.59% by Mr. Pang Fook Kiau. On 11.10.2017, Mr. Chua
Liang Sie, Ms. Chua Joo Gek, Mr. Chua Liang Chui and Mr. Pang Fook
Kiau entered into a concert parties agreement. As such, they were
deemed as controlling YJH Group Limited as a group and were
deemed to have interests in the Shares held by YJH Group Limited
respectively. For details, see “History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure — Concert parties arrangement” in the Prospectus.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30.9.2018, none of the Directors nor
chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme, the details of

which are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
its adoption.

Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time from the Listing Date
to the date of this report were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30.9.2018, other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest or a short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under

section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position in Shares of the Company:

AEHN-

= ag

B g

NN

RARBRIDH TR

FERRRADQ TR R AEERD
MERER KR

MR2018F9HA30H - RARABESRFEEITH
AR RIRR 1) 5 AR BB AR
1B e IR IR B 5 R HEE 1691 55 336 & A
AREFHEENBSCMOERIAR

Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
ordinary Shares shares held Total number  the total issued
held under equity of Shares share capital
Name Capacity Nature of interests (Note 1) derivatives interested (%)
MRAESTE ERTRA
s ERYE IAfEHEE REERN ABHNESL
#e &% BEME (H&E1) RABE ROEE (%)
Mr. Pang Fook Kiau (Note 2) A concert party to an agreement Deemed Interest 576,000,000 (1) - 576,000,000 72
ERALE(ME2) to buy shares described in Rl aER
s.317(1)(@) of the SFO
F5 RBERBIZE317(1)(6) &
PR BEN-—BTPHAL
YJH Group Limited Beneficial owner Beneficial Interest 576,000,000 (L) - 576,000,000 72
YJH Group Limited BREEA Enmaks
Notes: Biat -
1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part 1. [LIEZATREZERO (7R ] (ERRFFH

XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. YJH Group Limited is owned as to approximately 37.93% by Mr. Chua 2.

Liang Sie, 17.24% by Ms. Chua Joo Gek, 17.24% by Mr. Chua Liang
Chui and 27.59% by Mr. Pang Fook Kiau. On 11.10.2017, Mr. Chua
Liang Sie, Ms. Chua Joo Gek, Mr. Chua Liang Chui and Mr. Pang Fook
Kiau entered into a concert parties agreement. As such, they were
deemed as controlling YJH Group Limited as a group and were
deemed to have interests in the Shares held by YJH Group Limited
respectively. For details, see “History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure — Concert parties arrangement” in the Prospectus.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30.9.2018 and so far as known to the
Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had notified the Company
of an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which had been required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant Section 336 of the
SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the date of this report, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has in place appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is currently in force and was in
force since the Listing Date.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts that are
significant in relation to the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries to which either the Company or any of its subsidiaries
were a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the financial year or at any time during the financial year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group at the
end of the financial year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Summary of Financial Information”
in this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group contributes to a defined contribution plan. The details are
set out under the sub-section headed “Employee benefits” in note
2(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Foo Kon Tan LLP who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward looking statements with respect to the
financial conditions, results of operations and business of the Group.
These forward looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known
and unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or
implied in such statements.

On behalf of the Board
Sunlight (1977) Holdings Limited
Chua Liang Sie

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Singapore, 14.12.2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

To the members of Sunlight (1977) Holdings Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunlight
(1977) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 50 to 127, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 September 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audlit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B R E

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

R EIZ =

BEESNGEAE  BRERFEATENE
BESMNGANBRETREENEE - 5S
EEREANBRRERRRLERERHAE
WEFE HARRUSFESBRRER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRELEE

Our responses and work performed

EEWERRTETHIE

Revaluation of leasehold building

HERFEM

The Group carries its leasehold factory building at fair
value, with the change in fair value being recognised in
other comprehensive income. The Group engages a
firm of independent professional valuation experts to
assess the fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The fair value of the leasehold factory building is
determined by the independent professional valuer
using recognised valuation techniques. The technique
applied is the market approach, by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market. Significant judgement and estimates
are required in the valuation technique and inputs used
to determine the fair value of the leasehold factory
building.
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Our procedures in relation to the revaluation of leasehold

building included:

Assessing the methodologies and appropriateness of
the key assumptions used by the management’s expert;
Understanding and reviewing the assumptions in the
input data from the management’s expert through
discussions, comparisons to industry peers and
independent external data sources and where available
to agreement with supporting documentation and
historical trends; and

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the management’s expert.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B R E

Key audit matter

BREELEE

Our responses and work performed

EEWERRTETHIfE

Revaluation of leasehold building

HERFEM

Fair value encompasses estimating the expected selling
prices of the underlying assets by identifying the
comparable assets and determining the current market
selling prices of these assets. Input inaccuracies or
inappropriate bases used to determine the level of
impairment, including the comparable assets used in
the fair value measurements, could result in material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements.

ATEBREBEBENTENBREAEREERSEENE
RIS EERMEFTHEBEENENEE - ARNETRE
KRB ARBE N EERERTSE (BEARAFER
ENTELREE) GG MBHRR BB ERBERR

it o

The valuation techniques and inputs to the revaluation
of leasehold building are disclosed in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EfHERTHRANBERMEBABBERERGS M
BEMARMEES

We involved auditor’s expert to assist us in the above. We
evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
auditor’s expert, and the adequacy of the work performed by
the experts.

We also considered the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, describing the
methodologies used, degree of subjectivity and key
assumptions used in the estimates.

ELFLEBZEMERBESET LAERF - EFCTERX
HEMERNER BN RFEML - URERMHARIENT R
Mo

BRI EBEAVEREMERERDRD - FTAIANEL -
ITBREMEFRAAIZEMmR -

2018 F ¥R/ B (1977) #RAERAT 45



46

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B AR

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EED R &

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chin Sin Beng.

Foo Kon Tan LLP

A principal member of HLB International
Public Accountants and

Chartered Accountants

Singapore

14 December 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

as at 30.9.2018
K20184F 9 A30H
2018 2017
2018 20174
Note $’000 $'000
BMIsE T Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE M EE 3 7,104 7,420
Current Assets REEE
Inventories =8 4 998 718
Trade and other receivables 25k E M E R IE 5 2,486 1,893
Prepayments B FE 69 257
Cash and cash equivalents RERIRESEEY 6 7,668 3,095
11,221 5,963
Total assets HMEE 18,325 13,383
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Capital and Reserves B RS
Share capital %N 7 1,338 *
Reserves i 8 12,959 8,041
Total equity attributable to owners A F#HE AE(LEZAE
of the Company 14,297 8,041
Non-Current Liabilities FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTEEE 9 1,016 1,032
Borrowings RN 10 317 16
1,333 1,048
Current Liabilities RBEE
Borrowings BN 10 113 119
Trade and other payables B 5 N H e 70E 11 2,432 3,873
Current tax payable BB aE 150 302
2,695 4,294
Total liabilities =NEEEEE 4,028 5,342
Total equity and liabilities EEREEREE 18,325 13,383

* less than $1,000

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in

conjunction with these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

— = 32 a2
meEmkHEMEEmKER
for FY2018
2018 W&
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
Note $°000 $°000
k=3 Fr Fir
Revenue g 12 13,635 12,186
Cost of sales HEA (10,518) (8,693)
Gross profit ER 3,117 3,493
Other income HAUA 13 441 123
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R iHR X (1,287) (1,089)
Administrative expenses TR (1,138) (762)
Listing expenses WX (2,285) (724)
Other expenses Hiphx 14 (1) 27)
Finance costs BB AR 15 (21) (10)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BB AT (&518) R F 16 (1,174) 1,008
Taxation 18 18 (129) (268)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(BR) &R (1,303) 740
Other comprehensive income BREEEMEE RS -
after tax:
Items that will not be reclassified HESTEEHNIEZE
subsequently to profit or loss BEMIEE
Revaluation of leasehold building EHEHEEET - (231)
Related tax AT IE - 39
Other comprehensive loss for FREMZEEE (BREE)
the year, net of tax 3 - (192)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AT EEAEEERZE
for the year attributable to (FB) WEsHE
owners of the Company (1,303) 548
(Loss)/Earnings per share AAREEAELER
attributable to owners of the (B8, BR (L)
Company (Singapore cent)
— Basic and diluted — BN #E 19 (0.16) 0.12

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in  BaEMI K Z S BIREZ N — 2B - WAEMZ
conjunction with these financial statements. LR Gk — OB o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

for FY2018
2018 T F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

FORHAENELE

Share Share Merger Revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings equity
BEA  ROEE AHEE  ERHE  RBEER  EREE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T T T Fr Fr
Balance at 1.10.2016 R2016 510 A1 A2 &R * - 580 4,903 4,040 9,523
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 740 740
Other comprehensive loss for the yearf i E it 2 E 512
— Revaluation of leasehold building — EftAEBT - - - (192 - (192)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ EREE(BE)kEas
income for the year * - - (192) 740 548
Contributions by and distributions %8 A& REED R
to owners
— Dividends declared (Note 28) - EERRE (MiE28) - - - - (2,030) (2,030)
Transactions with owners in their J\fZBH#E A5 HH
capacity as owners BEAETHRS - - - - (2,030) (2,030)
Balance at 30.9.2017 R2017F9 A 30 A 2 &8 ’ - 580 4,711 2,750 8,041
Balance at 1.10.2017 R2017F10 A1 A2 &8 ’ - 580 4,711 2,750 8,041
Loss for the year, representing total  FRER @ BENLAEBEE
comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (1,303) (1,303)
Contributions by and distributions & AHE REED TR
to owners
— Issuance of shares (Note 7) — BT (3E7) 335 8,862 - - - 9,197
— Capitalisation issue - ER{LET 1,003 (1,003) - - - -
— Transaction costs attrioutable o — &/THRMIEER ZHAK
issuance of new shares - (1,637) - - - (1,637)
Changes in ownership interests WEAREARERNES
in subsidiaries
— Effects of reorganisation - BN E - (1) - - - (1)
Transactions with owners in their EZEEE AN S HH
capacity as owners FENETHRS 1,338 6,221 - - - 7,559
Balance at 30.9.2018 R2018F9 A 30 Az 8k 1,338 6,221 580 4,711 1,447 14,297
* less than $1,000 * A2 1,0007T
The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in  B&MI M sF4ARK X S 075z B — 21D - WA B

conjunction with these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

for FY2018
2018 T BUAF 2
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
Note $°000 $°000
= Fr FT
Cash Flows from Operating Activities REZ& IHNRERE
(Loss)/Profit before taxation iR (E548) S8 F| (1,174) 1,008
Adjustments for: AT ESIBELAE
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRETE
plant and equipment 3 315 355
Listing expenses FHEA 2,285 724
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERLZEESE
plant and equipment 14 1 27
Interest expense A EBX 15 21 10
Interest income FBUA 13 (32) (36)
Write-down on inventories FEMR 4 - 6
Operating profit before working EELECHBALEER
capital changes 1,416 2,094
Changes in inventories TEE (280) (10
Changes in trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e ZoE # (593) 256
Change in prepayments BN FREEE 188 (234)
Changes in trade and other payables ZBHREMBENKBEES (554) (1,140)
Cash generated from operations REXBBRS 177 966
Income taxes paid BEAETER (297) (252)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEK (FTA),/ EBREFE
operating activities (120) 714
Cash Flows from Investing Activities XEREZEBNHESHKEE
Interest received BUH B 32 36
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BENMRBITERE
plant and equipment - 16
Purchase of property, BEYE  BEMRE
plant and equipment 3 - (15)
Net cash generated from investing REZHAEEESTFE
activities 32 37

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in  BEMTHT 4B Z S B A RER A — 26D » W/BHZ
conjunction with these financial statements. LSk —OfBIE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

MEBRESRER®

for FY2018
2018 A BUAF /E
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
Note $°000 $°000
i Fr F
Cash Flows from Financing Activities REBEEZENRLRE
Interest paid BEAFE (21) (10)
Issuance of shares BT 9,196 -
Payment of dividends B B (2,030) -
Payment of listing expenses S ETREY (2,779) (230)
Proceeds from bank loan RITE RS 5E 500 -
Repayment of borrowings BEHER (205) (158)
Repayment of non-trade amounts BEFESHRNESHE
due to directors - (2,155)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEZEHME, (TR BEEFE
financing activities 4,661 (2,553)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBESZEEYEMCHd)
cash equivalents FE 4,573 (1,802
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRALEEY
beginning of year 3,095 4,897
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FXIEENESCEEY 6 7,668 3,095

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in

conjunction with these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
mEREREXR®

for FY2018

2018 F &

Reconciliation of Movements of Liabilities to Cash Flows Arising from Financing Activities
BEHREIMERENELE 2 HER

Obligations
under finance
leases Bank loan Total
MERERIE BRITEX @st
$'000 $'000 $000
Fr Fr Fr
Balance at 1.10.2017 R2017510 A1 B 2 &8 135 - 135
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BEHLHRESE
— Proceeds from bank loan — RITEFRMBRE - 500 500
— Repayment of borrowings — BEHER (119) (86) (205)
— Interest paid — BHFIE (8) (13) (21)
Total changes from financing cash flows@EH &R 82 B4 % (127) 401 274
Other changes Hit2 g
— Interest expense - MEFX 8 13 21
Total liability-related other changes =~ ERER ANt S EHAE 8 13 21
Balance at 30.9.2018 H2018%9 B30 H 2 &% 16 414 430

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in  BEMTHT 4B Z S B A RER A — 26D » W/BHZ
conjunction with these financial statements. LSk —OfBIE -

2018 %/ Bk (1977) ERABIRDA 55



56

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE
for FY2018

2018 &

1

General Information

The consolidated financial statements of Sunlight (1977)
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for FY2018 were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 14.12.2018.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 21.9.2017. The shares
of the Company were listed on GEM on 16.4.2018.

The registered address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The head office and principal place of business
in Singapore is located at 11 Tuas South Street 5, Singapore
637590. The principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong is located at 13/F, Wah Yuen Building, 149 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in the supply of tissue
products to corporate customers in Singapore. The subsidiary
directly and wholly-owned by the Company is SPP Investments,
which is an investment holding company. The subsidiary
indirectly and wholly-owned by the Company (through SPP
Investments) is Sunlight Paper, which is principally engaged in
the supply of tissue products to corporate customers in
Singapore. Details of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

The immediate and ultimate holding company is YJH Group, a
company incorporated in BVI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(a) Group Reorganisation 20@) £EEMA

In preparation for the Listing, the companies comprising the
Group underwent the Reorganisation as described below.

(i) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 21.9.2017 with an authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. On the same date, the Company allotted and
issued 1 fully paid share at par.

(i)  SPP Investments was incorporated in BVI as a limited
liability company on 6.10.2017. As at the date of
incorporation, SPP Investments was wholly-owned by the
Company.

(i)  As part of the Reorganisation, on 11.10.2017, Mr. LS
Chua, Ms. Chua, Mr. LC Chua and Mr. Pang transferred
their entire interest in Sunlight Paper to SPP Investments
at a consideration of $8,537,600 which was determined
with reference to the net asset value of Sunlight Paper as
at 30.9.2017, and was satisfied by way of allotment and
issuance of an aggregate 579,999 shares, credited as
fully paid-up in the capital of the Company. Following the
acquisition, Sunlight Paper became an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

2(b) Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with IFRS including related Interpretations
promulgated by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below.

The presentation of the consolidated financial statements
includes applicable disclosures required by the GEM Listing
Rules and the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in SGD
which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information is presented in SGD and rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated.

~

SREBERLT  ERARENRFZETT
MEA -

() ARER2017F9A21 BRMSE
SFEM AL - JETE MR AR /380,000 78
JT. 7 /38,000,000 % & A% @ 18.0.01
BB - AA - AR RIREER
BERBET1REERD ©

(i) SPP Investments 22017410 A6 H
REBREZBESFMERIABR
A ale WK B HSPP
Investments BN AT 2 &S ©

EREBEHEHEFT—IR - R2017F10 A
11H - BREEE Bt BER
4 5t A 2 % 55 £ [ SPP Investments
i =% H A Sunlight Paper B9 I&# - 4%
& /&8,537,6007T * J3 £ & Sunlight
Paper {20179 H30H 2 & E F
BETE CEBRERETARAR
N4 2£579,000 % A BRPIIES R IR
HE A - RUEER - Sunlight
Paperfl BARRINEZEE2EMNB A
= o

(i)

25| %
ERE B IS IR IR TOAR 15 BB B A% R 5 ZE Bl 4R
2 BREBRVEREREZES ([EHE
P mEREZES ) BHNRE - K46
VBEBREREIEBRESKNABORE - #T
R BERFT I EE SN

HEPBHRRNESBEGEM ETHRAIK
RAVEBIPTRE R E A KE -

FE MR EmER T AR R BIH I s E BTN
BITES - R BHRAI  FIEVEER
BRI T2 WEHBRESEILT
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2(b) Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
financial year. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected.

The significant accounting estimates and assumptions used
and areas involving a high degree of judgement are described
below.

Significant judgements in applying accounting policies
Going concern

The Group had incurred net loss and net operating cash
outflows of $1,303,000 (2017: net profit of $740,000) and
$120,000 (2017: net operating cash inflows of $714,000),
respectively, for FY2018. The net loss for FY2018 was mainly
attributed to the listing expenses incurred of $2,285,000 (2017:
$724,000). Excluding the listing expenses, the Group would
have generated a net profit of $982,000 (2017: $1,464,000) for
FY2018. In addition, the Group had net current assets and net
assets of $8,526,000 (2017: $1,669,000) and $14,297,000
(2017: $8,041,000), respectively, as at 30.9.2018.

Based on the above, the directors believe that the Group will
have sufficient working capital and financial resources to meet
its obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. Consequently, the
directors consider that there is no material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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for FY2018
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2(o) 271 EZE (40)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(b) Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2(o) 251 EZE (40)

Significant judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining group-wide
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recognised, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amount of the Group’s
deferred tax liabilities at the end of the reporting period and the
Group’s income taxes for the year are disclosed in Note 9 and
Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Significant assumptions used and accounting estimates
in applying accounting policies

Revaluation of leasehold building

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carries its
leasehold building at fair value, with the change in fair value
being recognised in other comprehensive income. The Group
has engaged a firm of independent professional valuation
experts to assess the fair value of its leasehold building, which
is determined using recognised valuation techniques. These
techniques comprise both the market approach and income
approach. The carrying amount of the leasehold building at fair
value at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuation techniques
and inputs used to determine the fair value of the leasehold
building are provided in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FE FA & B ERER B Y B8 KX 3 I (48)
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2(b) Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Significant assumptions used and accounting estimates
in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The costs of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line or reducing balance basis over the estimated
economic useful lives of the assets. The Group’s business is
capital intensive and the annual depreciation of property, plant
and equipment forms a significant component of total costs
charged to profit or loss. Management estimates the useful lives
of property, plant and equipment to be within 3 to 60 years. In
particular, management estimates the useful life of the leasehold
building to be 60 years. The carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period
is disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid. As
changes in the expected level of usage, maintenance
programmes and technological developments could impact the
economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
future depreciation charges could be revised. If depreciation on
the Group’s property, plant and equipment increases/decreases
by 10% from management’s estimates, the Group’s results for
the year will decrease/increase by $32,000 (2017: $36,000).

Allowance for inventory obsolescence

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale. The net realisable values for such inventories
are estimated based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. Possible changes in these estimates
could result in revisions to the valuation of inventories. The
carrying amount of the Group’s inventories at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. If the net realisable values of the
inventories decrease/increase by 10% from management’s
estimates, the Group’s results for the year will decrease/
increase by $100,000 (2017: $72,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(b) Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2(o) 251 EZE (40)

Significant assumptions used and accounting estimates
in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group’s loans and
receivables at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. If the present
value of estimated future cash flows decreases/increases by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group’s allowance for
impairment of loans and receivables will increase/decrease by
$249,000 (2017: $189,000).

The accounting policies used by the Group have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 T F &

2(c) Interpretations and Amendments to Published — 2(c) 720184 A %k #) = 48 #i 2 BI Y

Standards Effective in 2018

On 1.10.2017, the Group adopted the following IFRS that are
mandatory for application from that date. Changes to the
Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in
accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective
IFRS.

Reference Description

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

IFRIC 21 Levies

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
— Amendment to IAS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial
Reporting Standards
— Amendment to IAS 112 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

The adoption of these new and amended IFRS did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies nor any
significant impact on these financial statements, except for the
following.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative

Under Amendments to FRS 7, an entity would need to reconcile
cash flows arising from financing activities as reported in the
statement of cash flows, excluding contributed equity, to the
corresponding liabilities in the opening and closing statements
of financial position. Additional disclosures are also required
about information that is relevant to an understanding of the
liquidity of an entity. This includes any restrictions over the
decisions of an entity to use cash and cash equivalent balances,
e.g. any tax liabilities that would arise on repatriation of foreign
cash and cash equivalent balances. As this is a disclosure
standard, it affects the disclosures in the consolidated
statement of cash flows but does not affect the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 BT &

2(d) IFRS not yet Effective

The following are the new or amended IFRS and IFRIC issued
that are not yet effective but may be early adopted for the

current financial year:

2(d) 187 A WA B B

BT ¥R 2R
AT At R A BB T AE R AT R 1R 2
RN BB AT RS AT RIS B B 5

ER BB BRERBZESRE

Effective date
(Annual periods

Reference Description beginning on or after)
£ BaH
(RUT AEAR
2% i LEFRBNFEERRE)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1.1.2018
I % B 75 e o R B 55 9 55% MHIA 20184F1 A1H
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1.1.2018
BB B 75 ¥ 5 2R BN S8 16 5% BR AR 201851 A1H
IFRS 16 Leases 1.1.2019
B B 755 ¥ = 2E RN S8 16 5% HE 201941 A1H
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and 1.1.2018
Advance Consideration
BRI B ERELZEGH 225 INER 5 KRB RE 20181 A1 H
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1.1.2019
BB E R B | E 235, FRS T B 18 00 TR 1 201941 A1H
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
I % B 75 e 5 A2 ) 2016 4F 2 2017 4 B A 4F J2 e
— Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1.1.2019
— BIRR B REERIE 35RIERT A EBEH 201941 A1H
— Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1.1.2019
— BRI EEAE 11 5RERT AR G EHE 201941 A1H
— Amendment to IAS 12 Income Taxes 1.1.2019
— B &R ERIE 1257 IERTA Frigt 201941 A1H
— Amendment to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs 1.1.2019
— BIBREF T ¥R RIS 23 SRS R] AR BN 201941 A1H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 &

2(d) IFRS not yet Effective (Continued) 2(dl) 181 AR A R B B B A R S 2E A

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the above
IFRS in future periods will have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of their initial
adoption, except for the following:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement of financial assets, impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting. Financial assets are classified according
to their contractual cash flow characteristics and the business
model under which they are held. The impairment requirements
in IFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss model and
replace the IAS 39 incurred loss model. Adopting the expected
credit losses requirements will require the Group to make
changes to its current systems and processes.

Under IFRS 9, an investment in an equity instrument that does
not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument shall be measured at fair value at the date of initial
application. Any difference between the previous carrying
amount and the fair value would be recognised in the opening
retained earnings when the Group applies IFRS 9.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1.1.2018 with early application permitted. Retrospective
application is required, but restatement of comparative
information is not mandatory. If comparative information is not
restated, the cumulative effect is recorded in opening equity as
at 1.1.2018. The Group is adopting IFRS 9 in its financial
statements for FY2019. Based on the Group’s initial
assessment, the Group does not expect any significant
adjustments on adoption of IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(d) IFRS not yet Effective (Continued) 2(dl) 18 AR A TR B B B % R S 2E A

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15
provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognising revenue when the promised goods and services
are transferred to the customer i.e. when performance
obligations are satisfied.

Key issues for the Group include identifying performance
obligations, accounting for contract modifications, applying the
constraint to variable consideration, evaluating significant
financing components, measuring progress toward satisfaction
of a performance obligation, recognising contract cost assets
and addressing disclosure requirements.

IFRS 15 also includes clarifications on how to:

o Identify a performance obligation (the promise to transfer
a good or a service to a customer) in a contract;

o Determine whether a company is a principal (the provider
of a good or service) or an agent (responsible for
arranging for the good or service to be provided); and

° Determine whether the revenue from granting a licence
should be recognised at a point in time or over time.

Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for
annual periods beginning on or after 1.1.2018 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is adopting IFRS 15 in its
financial statements for FY2019. Based on the Group’s initial
assessment, the Group does not expect any significant
adjustments on adoption of IFRS 15.
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2(d) IFRS not yet Effective (Continued) 2(dl) 181 AR A R B B B A R S 2E A

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.

For a lessee, IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments.

A lessee measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-
financial assets (such as property, plant and equipment) and
lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities. As a
consequence, a lessee recognises depreciation of the right-of-
use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows applying IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

For a lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in IAS 17 Leases. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1.1.2019. Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply
IFRS 16 at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16.

SUNLIGHT (1977) HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

(&)

B R E R E 16 REE

BIRRBA T 3R 5 2E B E 16 &L P RERR - AT
B 2 REERENFRE -

ABAME @ BERMBEREERE 1655
SINE—ABAGHRERN - IR EK
HARBHEBB12EA 2 MBEHERRE
ERAE BRIFAHEEEREEEEER
1ERlim - AEAREREAEEE (RTH

HARBXNBEFNA) -

EEAFTEEREEENTT A EE I
BEEMIMYE - BE R&iE) 8L - m
AFEHEREN T AEEMI A EREL -
At - ABEARBRRAEAEEETERE
ERENE  YHBERENRSERD
BAREHA RAEHY  RERGE
AE7TRETRERLXARTRERRTD

E ]I

RHBEAME - EEREM B REERIFE 165
REDAERREAEANEATHREEN D
MASHAE - At HBAAEESEE
ENHEARKREHENRMENRE  KUATF
TREZRERENR

BlPR B i s 5 22 R 22 1655 74 20194 1 A 1
Ask 2 &RBHFEIRRER - ERAEKE
B iR SR 16 9L B BE A AR B B 75
WEERFE16RYBERBRAR ZARSE
FER o
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RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(d) IFRS not yet Effective (Continued) 2(dl) 18 AR A TR B B B % R S 2E A

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation addresses how to determine the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the de-recognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency. It is the
date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

IFRIC 22 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1.1.2018.

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling
parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
perspective of the controlling parties. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the interest of
the controlling parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control (Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses, as appropriate, from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or when
they first came under common control, whichever is earlier.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries at the end of
the reporting period. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company.
Consistent accounting policies are applied to like transactions
and events in similar circumstances.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intragroup transactions and
dividends are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2018 F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 20) EXSEHBEME @)
(Continued)
Consolidation (Continued) FEANERGE)

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Thus, the Group controls an investee if and only if the
Group has all of the following:

(i) power over the investee;

(i)  exposure, or rights or variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

(i)  the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its
returns

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation of certain property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
depreciable amount over their estimated useful lives.
Depreciation of other plant and equipment is calculated using
the reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Straight line method

Leasehold building 60 years
Renovations 5 years
Computers 3 years
Reducing balance method

Plant and equipment 10% to 20%
Furniture and fittings 10% to 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as
part of the cost of property, plant and equipment if the
obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred
as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and
equipment that have been recognised is added to the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the standard of performance of the asset
before the expenditure was made, will flow to the Group and
the cost can be reliably measured. Other subsequent
expenditure is recognised as an expense during the financial
year in which it is incurred.

For acquisitions and disposals during the financial year,
depreciation is recognised in profit or loss from the month that
the property, plant and equipment are installed and are available
for use, and to the month of disposal, respectively. Fully
depreciated property, plant and equipment are retained in the
books of accounts until they are no longer in use.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period as a change in estimates.

Leasehold building is measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses recognised after the date of
the revaluation. Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in
profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognised in profit
or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss, where
it exceeds an existing surplus on the same asset carried in the
revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 BT &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
The revaluation surplus included in the revaluation reserve in
respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained earnings
on retirement or disposal of the asset.

Financial assets

Financial assets, other than hedging instruments, can be
divided into the following categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. Financial
assets are assigned to the different categories by management
on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. The designation of financial assets
is re-evaluated and classification may be changed at the end of
the reporting period with the exception that a financial asset
shall not be reclassified into or out of the fair value through profit
or loss category while it is held or issued.

All financial assets are recognised on their trade date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value.

Derecognition of financial instruments occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred. An assessment for
impairment is undertaken at least at the end of each reporting
period whether or not there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018

2018 A BUAF /E

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 20) EXSEHBEME @)
(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued) MBEEE (&)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net EBEEAEEBRITEERABIENITH
amount is presented in the statement of financial position when, BEAMAKEE AR BEREHEE
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable HX RS REENSEGKE - BB
right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to BEMPBHEEAEE - DUFHEIIRR A
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability FBEARAERA ©
simultaneously.
Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from REREMBEENIFEATENERA
holding financial assets are recognised in profit or loss when 3R 4 2 U ER RS R A% K SUS 18
received, regardless of how the related carrying amount of Tz EEERBEREZERE -

financial assets is measured.

The Group does not hold any financial assets at fair value REEW ERSFEARA T ER ABRD
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments or available- MBEE BRI EN A HEEME
for-sale financial assets. BE o

Loans and receivables B R e A

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with B R EWGRIE IR E RIS RE M
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active EBEFENEERENIFTETAYG
market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or BE -EAEBHEEZRAEBEHEARERE -
services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the Ems RS EREEESRKFIE - AIEE
receivables. They are included in current assets, except for B MERZIE - EREOELERTE
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting EAN - ETEEHEARSBRET12
period. These are classified as non-current assets. A A%E - ZFFIESIEIERBEE -
Loans and receivables include trade and other receivables and ERRERFIBECIEE S REtEKFIE
cash and cash equivalents. They are subsequently measured at UEBReRBSEEY - %ZEHE EBF
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less REBRAE AR H R ERES S -
allowance for impairment. If there is objective evidence that the AERBEBRBRTREELBERE %%
asset has been impaired, the financial asset is measured at the EE AR AR A BN R AR 8l 5 AR K
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at ReneRElE BEEAWODSHEL
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are AR ARRREREECETE
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s B REBBRERBBED - HZERN
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event BERBERBES HHERBETSHBAW
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a MRERREMNEEKAR - MEIEERE
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the WIER ©

impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
The impairment or write-back is recognised in profit or loss.
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2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis, and
includes all costs in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. In the case of manufactured products,
cost includes all direct expenditure and production overheads
based on the normal level of activity.

Allowance is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective
inventories in arriving at the net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances
and fixed deposit maturing less than three months after the end
of the financial period.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of new ordinary shares that
have been issued. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of new ordinary shares are deducted against share
premium.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are not accounted for
in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because of the Articles grant the Directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised directly as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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for FY2018
2018 T F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade
and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual agreements of the instrument. All
interest-related charges that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised as an expense in “finance cost” in profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s obligations
specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Financial liabilities and financial assets are offset and the net
amount is presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Borrowings are recognised initially at the fair value of proceeds
received less attributable transaction costs, if any. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost which is the initial fair
value less any principal repayments. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
taken to profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. The interest expense is
chargeable on the amortised cost over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 20) EXSEHBEME @)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings which are due to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are included in current
borrowings in the statement of financial position if the loan
facility agreements include an overriding repayment on demand
clause, which gives the lender the right to demand repayment
at any time, at its sole discretion and irrespective of whether a
default event has occurred. These borrowings are classified as
current as the Group does not have the unconditional right at
the end of the reporting period to defer their settlement for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period. Other
borrowings due to be settled more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are included in non-current
borrowings in the statement of financial position.

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value,
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less the
capital element of lease repayments (see policy on finance
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Leases HE

Where the Group is the lessee, EAREEERAMEA -
Finance leases MEHE

Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights
approximating to ownership, the assets are capitalised as if
they had been purchased outright at values equivalent to the
lower of the fair values of the leased assets and the present
value of the total minimum lease payments during the periods
of the leases. The corresponding lease commitments are
included under liabilities. The excess of lease payments over the
recorded lease obligations are treated as finance charges which
are amortised over each lease to give a constant effective rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligation.

The leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives as detailed in the accounting policy
on “Property, plant and equipment”.

ERERE(RETZENERAERS)
REERHMESK EESWENL M
MERESEREEEEAFERBAERNH
REEENFEBRREZBEREPRE
EWREERBA - HBAHEEREFARGBRE
T MENRBHALHEEEE 2 EE
WRERSHREHERBRTHEBRZITER
ERMBZHHWE -

T 3 2 T B B AU B 8 PR 4 R4
B HERRER 0T BERRE] O
BT -

2018 % / B (1977) ERBIRDF

75



76
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e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases.

Rentals on operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives, if any,
are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration
agreed for the use of the leased asset. Penalty payments on
early termination, if any, are recognised in profit or loss when
incurred.

Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised
at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting or taxable profit or
loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities
on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, provided
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

A deferred income tax liability is recognised on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SUNLIGHT (1977) HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

26) EXIFTHEBE @)

HEGE)

BEHE
EHEEEMASOAEEENRR K @R
HEHEARBRIDBAEEHEE -

KEHENENESABBENFY &
HROREBRmTME  HERB(ESR) D
BRAMERAEEEEZTNFRED
ARER » BRATRIEMEIR(EHB) TIRE
ERERSER

FriE®

AR SR E R M MG R RAR
BERERAMNSBMAERBEBAOTE R
BORIRIEIRG ST T 75 4 B SR AL TR A 1
Bl R 2 FRRER -

BEMGHRIDAEENABENHREREE
MBEEMBRRNEAENEREMELS
BYE RS 1 RETTRERR o AT BB
BRKEBERS (TEREEBAM) PHE
ERBENNGER  MEXZKIZE
SRS ERTFBHER - BITER
B o

WAEEHRBHIRREREENEE R
HIBITRRER - MRS AR ERREE
BY R — RN BRI ATET - 3
HTRAMBEEABKEZSFERERF
HAEBHNHHBAREREE  BEFOH
HEERABBRREER  AEHRER
HEENRAME -

BEFFSREBEDINBEARIREELEN
B ER MR - 8175 B ]2 6 i
EZERMBOER AENEZEREANERR
RAGEDANRRSIN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 20) EXSEHBEME @)

(Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is measured:

(i) at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period; and

(i)  based on the tax consequence that will follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income
or expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that the tax
arises from a business combination or a transaction which is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group contributes to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), a
defined contribution plan regulated and managed by the
Government of Singapore, which applies to the employees. A
defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan
under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. The contributions to CPF are charged to profit
or loss in the period to which the contributions relate.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. Accrual is made for the unconsumed
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2(e)
(Continued)
Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group or the Company if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Company or of a parent of the
Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group or the Company if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

@iy  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company. If the Company is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 F &
2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 20) EXSEHBEME @)

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued) BEs (&)

(b)  (Continued) L) (%)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a vi) EREZ@FTHEAALTIESISNZ
person identified in (a). HEEH] o

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having the
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the entity. Directors and certain management
executives are considered key management personnel.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other
than inventories, are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, then the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong will be identified.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level.

Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal
and value in use, based on an internal discounted cash flow
evaluation. Impairment loss recognised for a cash-generating
unit is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating
unit. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that
an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist.

Any impairment loss is charged to profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount or when
there is an indication that the impairment loss recognised for
the asset no longer exists or decreases.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income in
profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary
activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and
volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted
and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is
recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 20) EXSEHBEME @)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending
on the individual terms of the sales agreement. For local sale of
goods, transfer usually occurs when the product is received at
the customer’s warehouse; however, for some international
shipments, transfer occurs upon loading the goods onto the
relevant carrier at the port.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss,
using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grant is recognised at its fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with.

Functional currencies

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in SGD, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Conversion of foreign currencies

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency
(“foreign currency”) are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Currency translation differences from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates
at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or
loss.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis
as either other income or other expenses depending on
whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net
loss position.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.
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2(e) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. All operating segments’ operating results are
reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”), who is the chief operating decision maker, to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available. Additional disclosures on each of these
segments are shown in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, including the factors used to identify the reportable
segments and the measurement basis of segment information.

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share
options granted to employees, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 F &
3  Property, Plant and Equipment 3 W% - BEIEKE
Leasehold Plant and Furniture Motor
building  Renovations equipment  and fittings Computers vehicles
BEAE BY  HERRE  REREE L RE i
(at revaluation) (at cost) (at cost) (at cost) (at cost) (at cost) Total
(REf) (REE) (RE*) (BRE*) (BE*) (REK)
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
i i T r r s T
Cost or valuation RASGE
At1.10.2016 R2016F107 1A 6,990 15 1,315 19 28 1,442 9,809
Addttions NE - - - - 15 - 15
Revaluation Eff (300) - - - - - (390)
Disposals e - - (287) - (28) (68) (383)
At30.9.2017 #2017E9A30H 6,600 15 1,028 19 15 1,374 9,061
Disposals e - - m - - - U]
At 30.9.2018 R2018%59A30H 6,600 15 1,021 19 15 1,374 9,044
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiTHTE
At 1102016 R2016510A 18 - 15 1219 4 2 509 1,775
Depreciation wE 159 - 9 1 2 184 355
Revaluation E (159) - - - - - (159)
Disposals e - - (258) - (8) (54) (340)
At 30.9.2017 R2017F9A30R - 15 970 5 2 639 1631
Depregiation g 154 - 7 2 5 147 315
Disposals HE - - 6) - - - (6)
At 309.2018 #2018%9A30R 154 15 o7 7 7 786 1,940
Net book value REFE
At 30.9.2018 H2018E9A30H 6,446 - 50 12 8 588 7,104
A 3092017 R2017E9A30H 6,600 - 58 14 13 735 7420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE
for FY2018

2018 &

3

Property, Plant and Equipment (Gontinued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases, comprising motor vehicles, is $260,000
(2017: $459,000) (Note 10).

As at 30.9.2018, the leasehold building with carrying amount of
$6,446,000 (2017: $6,600,000) is mortgaged to secure bank
loan of $414,000 (Note 10) and other banking facilities granted
to the Group.

The leasehold building is an industrial property located at 11
Tuas South Street 5, Singapore 637590. The property
comprises one parcel of land with a total site area of
approximately 2,999.9 sg.m. and one block of two-storey
building erected thereon completed in around 2003. The
building has a gross floor area of approximately 2,993.42 sq.m.
The property is held under the Government leasehold estate for
an initial term of 30 years commencing from 16.8.2000 and
expiring on 15.8.2030, with an option to renew for an additional
term of 30 years commencing on 16.8.2030 and expiring on
15.8.2060.

Revaluation of leasehold building

In FY2018, management has engaged a firm of independent
professional valuers, a different firm of valuers from that
appointed in FY2017, to perform valuation of the leasehold
building, having regard to the valuers’ recognised and relevant
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location
and category of the property being valued.

In determining the fair value of the leasehold building, the
valuers used the market approach and income approach.
Based on the valuation report, the fair value was determined to
be $6,500,000 (2017: $6,600,000). As at 30.9.2017, the
revaluation deficit of $192,000 (after the related tax of $39,000
(Note 9)) was recognised in other comprehensive income. As at
30.9.2018, no revaluation adjustment was made as the carrying
amount of the leasehold building did not differ materially from its
fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE
for FY2018

2018 F &

3

Property, Plant and Equipment (Gontinued)
Revaluation of leasehold building (Continued)

The carrying amount of the leasehold building that would have
been recognised had it been carried under the cost model was
$998,000 (2017: $1,081,000).

Sale or transfer of the leasehold building held for own use is
subject to consent from the Government leasehold estate.

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The fair value measurement of the leasehold building stated at
revalued amount has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value
based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. The

Y% - BB KR
EfMEEET (BE)
MIERARERXTER - AIERNHEEZFIR
fE{E A998,0007L(20174F : 1,081,0007T) °
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MRFE TRIRFAELEIRAFERE

following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring BETAMGEEREMN - ARFFANEARTRT
the Level 3 fair value hierarchy, as well as the significant Bl A BUR
unobservable inputs used:
Inter-relationship
between key
unobservable
Significant inputs and
Valuation unobservable fair value
Description technique inputs measurement Range
ERTAERESA
HEHEAVETE
it fRER M EXATAHERAGE ZBHEDERFE gE
Leasehold building — Market approach by Adjustments applied to A significant increase in -~ 2018: Discount of

industrial property in
Singapore

making reference to
comparable sale

transactions as the remaining lease
available in the

Singapore market. transactions and

location of comparable

properties.
MEETF — RETIR 5% E2EINK %Tﬁmfﬁaﬁ%%
IE% TSR EHAE LR B RERAT
HERSD ° ﬁ SFEH - AHERIHN
KRR E LB E
BIRLE o

market comparables,
taking into consideration

market selling prices

would result in a

16% to 36%
of comparables

tenure, timing of such

significantly higher fair
2017: Discount of
0% to 1.6%

value measurement,
and vice versa.

of comparables
THERARELAE 20185 : WA ALK
ﬁﬁuiﬁﬁg TEE iR 16% 5 36%

ZHEM K2R
2017 F « RAJBH®
HEFTE%E1.6%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 &
4 Inventories 4 FE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
$°000 $000
Fr T
Raw materials — at cost FEARE — AR 5 /
Goods-in-transit — at cost BEE M — AR 146 76
Finished goods — at cost SIpkdn — A 847 635
998 718
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRAXENGEESHEOITHN AT [
expense and included in “cost of sales” is as follows: ERA] R :
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEGFERAEE 9,957 8,174
Write-down on inventories FEHH - 6
9,957 8,180
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEIEKAER ZIH FEMRE 2 PRIEK
value, after allowance for write-down of certain inventories to BIER - KB MBRTEEERFEN
net realisable value. B o
For FY2017, due to damage of certain finished goods, the R2017HBFEE - BRE TRKMIEE -
Group fully wrote down $6,000 of the inventories. The Group K& B #5177 56,000 7T 2 ZE MR © 722018
did not write down any inventories to their net realisable value in BHFE  AEEVEMBRETANFTEZA
Fy2018. BI55ME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 F &
5 Trade and Other Receivables 5 BZEkHEMEWKIEA
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
$°000 $000
Fi T
Trade receivables from third parties REF=HWNE S EWRTIE 2,358 1,797
Other receivables H b e U GRIE 83 88
Deposits TR 45 8
2,486 1,893
The movement in allowance for impairment losses in respect of B o EWTIEREEERENEENT -
trade receivables is as follows:
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
$°000 $000
Fi T
At 1 October R10A1H - 5
Allowance utilised BB AEE - (5)
At 30 September ROH30H - -
Trade receivables that have been determined to be impaired at PG AETARBENE ZEKRZIE S
the end of the reporting period relate to debtors that are in LB ERSBRKHERNROEBA - 25
financial difficulties or have defaulted on payments. These trade B 5 E W kI8 I LA ] K AR ek i sk =
receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit EEmER -
enhancements.
The Group generally extends credit period of 0 to 30 days AEE-—RAEABFPLEREZEHOE30H
(2017: 0 to 30 days) to customers, depending on the length of (20174 : 0E30H) ' NHETEEMNER
business relationship, payment history, background and FRFH NRESL  EERUEELM
financial strength of the customers. The Group actively reviews FToAEEREGRTEFERZBES L
the trade receivable balances and follows up on outstanding RHERE M RHNERS -
debts with the customers.
Trade receivables arise from customers in Singapore. B EWZREREHF MRS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 [E
5 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) B 5 K& H A EWGOE (@)
Based on invoice dates, ageing analysis of the Group's trade BiEZRZEE AEBZFERKIENEK
receivables is as follows: RO
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
$°000 $000
Fr T
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 1,206 1,027
31 to 60 days 31&260H 715 576
61 to 90 days 61290H 303 176
Over 90 days im0 H 134 18
2,358 1,797

REBEZHE - HARRBENESEBFKIED

Based on due dates, the ageing analysis of trade receivables

that are not impaired is as follows: BRE DT
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
$°000 $000
Fr T
Not past due NI 4% 360 HA 1,274 1,117
Past due 0 to 30 days #MEA0OE30H 650 488
Past due 31 to 60 days BHEI31E£60H 303 175
Past due 61 to 90 days #HI612£90H 122 8
Past due over 90 days #IHAEB#E 90 A 9 9
2,358 1,797

Based on historical default rates, the Group believes that no ERUFBRERR - KEBBEHAR
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade BHEWTEELRERE  FRALE
receivables, as they mainly arise from customers that have a FEWZEITERaEAEEREAS R T4
good credit record with the Group. HEE o

Trade and other receivables are denominated in SGD. B 5N H el I8 T AR AN T EHE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A =
RERBHRRHME
for FY2018
2018 F &
6 Cash and Cash Equivalents ReMESEFEED
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
Cash in bank RIS 816 3,085
Cash on hand FEEIRS 17 10
833 3,095
Fixed deposit T HEATERR 6,835 -
7,668 3,095
The fixed deposit had a weighted average maturity of 9 days FEIF RIS HIR A S AR5t 9
from the end of the reporting period with an effective interest A RREHRNEBRFFEE1.283% o
rate of 1.23% per annum at the end of the reporting period.
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following BeMREEBWIIVA TN EEE :
currencies:
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
$°000 $000
Ft Fit
HKD BT 6,921 -
SGD N T 747 3,095
7,668 3,095
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e P BmRME

The authorised share capital of the Company as at the date of
its incorporation on 21.9.2017 was HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares at a nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

On 21.9.2017, one fully paid share was issued and allotted to
the initial subscriber. On the same day, the aforementioned one
share was transferred to YJH Group by the initial subscriber.

On 11.10.2017, as part of the Reorganisation, Mr. LS Chua,
Ms. Chua, Mr. LC Chua and Mr. Pang transferred their entire
interest in Sunlight Paper to SPP Investments at a consideration
of $8,537,600 which was satisfied by way of allotment and
issuance of an aggregate 579,999 shares to YJH Group at the
nominal value of HK$0.01 each, amounting to HK$5,800
(equivalent to $1,000), credited as fully paid-up in the capital of
the Company.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution of the Company passed
on 21.3.2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the
creation of additional 9,962,000,000 shares in the authorised
share capital of the Company.

SUNLIGHT (1977) HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

for FY2018
2018 &
7  Share Capital 7 R
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 F 20174 2018 20174
Number of ordinary shares $°000 $000
ZEREE Tr Fr
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 1 October W10A18 1 - * -
Issuance of shares i)
— incorporation AV - 1 - *
— reorganisation — B4 579,999 - 1 -
— capitalisation issue — BB 599,420,000 - 1,003 -
— share offer — e 200,000,000 - 334 -
At 30 September M9 A30H 800,000,000 1 1,338 *
* represents an amount less than $1,000 * 141,000 7T

ARARIREFMA BEI2017F9 A21H
HATE IR 2 A 380,000 7% 7T 99 4 38,000,000
IS G EE 0.01 B ITHI D -

R2017F9A21H » —REE RN IERETT
LEEFYZREA - RAB  ¥PREA
1 it — RO EE T YIHEE -

R2017F 108118 - tEAEHE+F—IR
BEEE BT BRBPEERTEE
1] SPP Investments 7% E 73 Sunlight Paper
KR - (18 58,537,600 ¥ N TT - BB
Be g% R AT AR A IR A A & H579,999 ik
GREEO0.01 BT ARIIIERR IR (A £
5,800 T (F8 & $1,0007T)) FYIHE E
WAL .

BIE2018 43 A 21 HBIBHA R AR E R
BE OALDAMEERANELR
9,962,000,000 A% 88 #INi& 17 M £ 380,000 78
JL% Z= 100,000,000 7 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE
for FY2018

2018 F &

v

Share Capital (Continued)

Arising from the capitalisation issue on 16.4.2018, the amount
of HK$5,994,200 (equivalent to $1,003,000) standing to the
credit of the share premium account was capitalised through
the allotment and issuance of 599,420,000 shares.

Following the completion of the capitalisation issue and share
offer, the issued share capital of the Company is HK$8,000,000
divided into 800,000,000 shares, all fully paid.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 16.4.2018
by way of share offer of 200,000,000 new shares at the offer
price of HK$0.275 per share. The gross proceeds were
HK$55,000,000 (equivalent to $9,196,000), of which $334,000
and $8,862,000 were credited to share capital and share
premium, respectively.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at shareholders’ meetings. All shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

NE

MR 20184F 4 A16 HETTER(LETT - B
B% 93 %4 18 PR 70 AR 79 5,994,200 7 70 (A & 1
1,003,0007t ) B & @ B ¥ Kk ¥ 17
599,420,000 B iz i FEFRE AN o

BARBETEBRNEETNE  NAFH
2 % 17 i A& /A8,000,000/8 T © A
800,000,000 M4 B F& 17 ©

N QAR 2 R2018F4516H & B

200,000,000 A% # A% 17 &) i 19 2 & 2 = &

GEM £ - #EBREMK02758 T~ I

18 3 18 48 58 555,000,000 7L (48 & R

9,196 oooﬁ) » HA1334,0007T 8,862,000
D RIET AR A R I % E o

EERSEABREDRITIREIRMES -
BEAEBRARBRRRER—F - AR
MEDEARANBEEN AFERSMH

fif o

Reserves G
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 ¢
$000 $'000
Fx Tt
Share premium M5B 6,221 -
Merger reserve EOHER 580 580
Revaluation reserve EHFHE 4,711 4,711
Retained earnings IREE B 1,447 2,750
12,959 8,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

8 Reserves (Continued)

Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of proceeds from the

issuance of new ordinary shares over the nominal value of the

shares issued, net of share issue expenses.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the excess of the share capital

of Sunlight Paper, which is the sole operating subsidiary of the

Group, over the consideration given in the Reorganisation.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of leasehold

building under the revaluation model (Note 3).

9 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Movements in deferred tax liabilities during the financial year are

as follows:

{1 |

BARSE

A I B T B BRI RER LD
BITROEENEER M EITH A
4 o

BpHEE
& O {5 {8 5 Sunlight Paper (75 % & & 1 —
BEM DR RAB L EAMERENSEE -

Ef#E
EfRERIMRBEEMRANEEEZTE
it (faE3) °

RIETHIARIE
REBIMBEREANRRIERIES G20
T

Recognised

Recognised in in other Recognised in

profit or loss - comprehensive profit or loss
At1.10.2016 (Note 18) income  At30.9.2017 (Note 18)  At30.9.2018

REMBEE
RO16F  REEER  REMRE Ro017§ WEER 20185
10818 (Fst18) i 6aged 9A30H (Ftst18) 9A30H
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T i T

Property, plant and equipment ERY G

— depreciation -FE 0 29) - 67 (16) 51
— revaluation -8t 1,004 - (39) 965 - 965
1,094 (23 (39 1,032 (16) 1,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 T BUAF 2
10 Borrowings 10 &%
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Non-current FERE
Obligations under finance leases FhE & A - 16
Bank loan IRITER 317 -
317 16
Current TE
Obligations under finance leases A E AR 16 119
Bank loan RITER 97 -
113 119
430 135
Repayment schedule BREEX
The repayment schedule of the Group’s borrowings is as AEBERNERERERDOT ¢
follows:
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 %
$°000 $'000
Ft Tt
Within 1 year 1FR 113 119
Between 1 and 2 years 1824 97 16
Between 2 and 5 years 2B 54 220 -
More than 5 years BB 5F - _
430 135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 A BUAF /E
10 Borrowings (Continued) 10 Bk
Obligations under finance leases mEHERE
2018 2017
2018 2017
$°000 $'000
T T
Minimum lease payments payable: IR EMFAE RS
Due not later than one year TER—F1EFIH 17 126
Due later than one year and —FRERAFRNEIE
not later than five years - 17
17 143
Less: Finance charges allocated to B Bl 2 R PR B A Rl R R
future periods (1) 8)
Present value of minimum lease payments /&7 & 585 (& 16 135
Present value of minimum lease payments: &{X & 2 Z8IR(E :
Due not later than one year TER—FEIH 16 119
Due later than one year and —EBBERERNDH
not later than five years - 16
16 135
Represented by: 5l A
Current e 16 119
Non-current IERE - 16
16 135
The Group’s motor vehicles are held under finance leases. All REEMNAEREREEERSE - AR
finance leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no EHEANEFEEREAER  TFERK
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental RERENEI LR o
payments.
The finance leases are secured by the underlying assets, BMEMEDEBEEEIEER  BIFEARE
comprising motor vehicles of $260,000 (2017: $459,000) (Note 260,0007% (20174 : 459,0007T ) (Fi3¥3) °
3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 F &
10 Borrowings (Continued) 10 Bk
Terms and conditions R R AR 4
The terms and conditions of borrowings at the end of the R BAAR A0 8BRS S Rn T

reporting period are as follows:

Nominal
interest rate Year of Face Carrying
Currency (p.a) maturity value amount
FHEAE
E% (8%) HEER [ERED REE
$000 $000
T T
2018 2018
Obligations under WEMEAE SGD 2.28% t0 2.95% 2019
finance leases KT 2.28% Z2.95% 2019 17 16
Bank loan BITER SGD 3.0% 2023
K 7 3.0% 20235 414 414
431 430
2017 2017%
Obligations under BEMERE SGD  2.28% t02.99% 2018 t0 2019
finance leases ST 228%%E2.99% 2018FZ2019F 143 135
The bank loan is secured by the Group’s leasehold building BITER U EENBERZF(HE3)
(Note 3) and a corporate guarantee from the Company. BN TN A B (R o
Carrying amounts and fair values BREERATHE
The carrying amounts and fair values of long-term borrowings REHRMN EHEZEmELAFED
at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
Carrying
amount Fair value
SREE HE
$°000 $000
Tt Tt
2018 2018 &
Bank loan RITER 414 414
2017 2017 %
Obligations under finance leases A FE B RE 135 135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

10 Borrowings (Continued) 10
Carrying amounts and fair values (Continued)

EENC )

SREER AVE(8)

ATEDREERESRE  FAERE
FRHRBE WA TBOERFROES

The fair values are determined from the discounted cash flow
analyses, using the implicit discount rates based upon the

borrowing rates which the directors expect would be available
at the end of the reporting period, as follows:

MEBEWT

2018 2017

2018 2017

% p-a. % p.a.

BE% H5F%

Obligations under finance leases & E AR - 3.0
Bank loan RITER 3.0 -

The fair value hierarchy of the above long-term borrowings is L REERO R FEBRAE 2/ -

Level 2.
11 Trade and Other Payables 11 B NEMERFKIA

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
$°000 $000
F Tt
Trade payables to third parties ENE=FESEMNTE 1,782 1,345
Accrued employee benefits TR B tEF 425 307
Accrued expenses FERTRIX 101 22
Dividends payable to shareholders FEAT AR AR B - 2,030
Output GST, net HIERFEE 37 51
Other payables H A EA A 87 118
2,432 3,873

The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is EEE G EMZEBHN T EEEL A30XK

approximately 30 days (2017: 30 days). (20174 : 30K) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 BT &

11 Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
Based on invoice dates, ageing analysis of the Group’s trade

11 B NEMEMNFIE®

REZHZRH  AEEESEMNFANK

payables is as follows: o T
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
$°000 $000
Ft T
0 to 30 days 0ZE30X 1,051 780
31 to 60 days 31 260K 631 541
61 to 90 days 61E90K 100 24
Over 90 days [ EIS PN - -
1,782 1,345

Trade and other payables are denominated in the following

B 5 N HMERIBTAT I EEHE

currencies:
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
$°000 $'000
Fr i
SGD Hnsoe 2,391 3,813
MYR Sk 41 60
2,432 3,873
12 Revenue 12 Wz
Significant categories of revenue, excluding applicable goods BEANERBERBEREI - EAUEEER
and services tax, are detailed as follows: ESIR (N
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
$°000 $'000
Fr Fit
Sale of goods HEEm 13,635 12,186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S UA =
e EHRRME
for FY2018
2018 [E
13 Other Income 13 EmbUgA
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Foreign exchange gain, net SN Y 75 5B 310 3
Interest income FEWA 32 36
Rental income VEERON 20 21
Sundry income FETEUTA 34 18
Trademark income A 45 45
441 123
14 Other Expenses 14 HiFEx
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
$’°000 $'000
T Tt
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE  WENMREER
plant and equipment 1 27
15 Finance Costs 15 BhE KA
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4F
$°000 $'000
T Ft
Interest expenses on: ATHERY
— finance leases — BEMRE 8 10
— bank loan — RITERK 13 -
21 10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 T BUAF 2
16 (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation 16 BREEAT(E18), & Fl
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
Note $’000 $'000
k=3 Tr Tt
(Loss)/Profit before taxation has KR A T S IBE KRR
been arrived at after charging: (E518), % H
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2 Bl 357 B 35 20
Cost of inventories recognised in  FA$4E AR ER B 1E S A AR
cost of sales 4 9,957 8,174
Depreciation of property, ME - BENMEEITE
plant and equipment 3 315 355
Operating lease expenses BEMERS 34 36
Write-down on inventories FEMOR 4 - 6
Staff costs (including Directors’ BITA(BIEESEHM
remuneration (Note 17)) (FFEE17))
— salaries and other related costs  — %% & H b fE R Ak 4 1,566 1,308
— contributions to defined — REHEEIMER
contribution plans 94 102
1,660 1,405
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 /&
17 Directors’ Remuneration and Five Highest Paid 17 ESHFBEAESZSH AT
Individuals
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) E=HH
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Discretionary Defined
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e M
ER  RENEN BBRL REMT &t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
FY2018 018HHEE
Executive Directors (Note ()): #rEE(ME))
Mr. Chua Liang Sie ERBAAE - 120 46 13 179
Ms. Chua Joo Gek EATaL - 84 2 9 125
Mr. Chua Liang Chui BRPEE - 114 4 13 168
Mr. Chua Wenhao Y oy - 70 7 13 90
Independent non-executive Directors B #4772 % (3 (i) :
(Note (il):
Mr. Teo Beng Fwee RRELE 14 - - - 14
Mr. Yeo Hai Thong Michagl BABLE 14 - - - 14
Mr. Law Kin Ho REREE 14 - - - 14
Totdl @3t 42 388 126 48 604
FY2017 MTHREE
Executive Directors (Note ()): #HrEE () -
Mr. Chua Liang Sie BERBLL - 120 46 13 179
Ms. Chua Joo Gek ERTLL - 84 32 9 125
Mr. Chua Liang Chui ERPEE - 114 4 13 168
Mr. Chua Wenhao Y Qi - 58 8 12 78
Independent non-executive Directors 5 347722 (WL (i) -
(Note (il):
Mr. Teo Beng Fiwee REEELA - - - - -
Mr. Yeo Hai Thong Michael BERLE - - - - -
Mr. Law Kin Ho BREzLE - - - - -
Tota it - 376 127 47 550
Notes: MeE -
0] All the executive Directors were appointed on 21.9.2017. 0] P TE S IR 2017F9 21 BEE(F -
(ii) All the independent non-executive Directors were (ii) A E S IEHTEE TN 201843 A 21
appointed on 21.3.2018. AEET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 BT &

17 Directors’ Remuneration and Five Highest Paid

Individuals (Continued)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
During the year, no Director or any of the highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
(2017: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors or any of the highest paid individuals of the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office as a Director of any
member of the Group or of any other office in connection
with the management of the affairs of any member of the

Group (2017: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 4
Directors (2017: 4) for the year, whose emoluments are

reflected in note (a).

The analysis of the emolument of the remaining 1 (2017:

(@) EEHFM(E)

&) -

b) EEEREHFAL

N E

17 BEEHFMNE AR RS H

Ao

RER BEREEFRENREHAL
MEKRFBHETABE (2017 4 -
) AEEHBERNESIAKEE
Al &= AT B E ARSI
AREBEHIMAREBIL RSB K AF
RBEARBEIAKBERARESRM
FREEREBEMKERAEBH
%8 &) £ fo] EL 4t B (22 40 465 18 (2017 £F

RER - KERERESHFALEES
£ (2017F 1 4R)EF - HMEFHE

RERN B T1R2(2017F 1 18) &

1) highest paid non-Director individual for the year, is set BHIEESALTNBES S TETI M
out below: T

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
$°000 $°000
Fx Fx
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #H& -~ ZiE R EET 108 65
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL 35 8
Defined contributions REHEK 22 12
165 85

The emolument paid or payable to each of the above
non-Director individuals for the year fell within the

following band:

RER > DN HEN LS IFEEA
THOFMER T 5 E

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 or S$175,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 184 175,000
(2017: S$174,000) T (2017 £ -
174,000 ¥ 4 7T) 1 1

2018 % / B (1977) ERBIRDF
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e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 A BUAF /E
18 Taxation 18 IR
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
$°000 $'000
F T
Current taxation BN EARR 18
— current year — RNEE 155 302
— changes in estimates in respect of — BAFENMEFE
prior years (10) (11)
145 291
Deferred taxation (Note 9) EIERTE (M7 9)
— current year — AFEE (16) (12)
— changes in estimates in respect of — BEFEERNGTE
prior years - (1)
(16) (23)
129 268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

FLI8 (&)

ZTIRETE  BRFENEENTG
X BRRERBEAN(EER) EF G
MEMETEMMEHESRE

18 Taxation (Continued) 18
The tax expense on the results of the financial year varies from
the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable
rate of income tax on (losses)/profits as a result of the following:

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
$°000 $'000
Tr T
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BRE AT (E518), SR F (1,174) 1,008
Tax at statutory rates applicable to SFERARTRBDEER A EER X
different jurisdictions (75) 171
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses AT B S MR TS S 28 293 164
Tax effect on non-taxable income SERBUMA MBI 5 2 (39) -
Tax exempt income, rebates RRUA ~ BRI RER
and incentives (44) (45)
Changes in estimates of current taxation & {F F[Z BNEAFS 1B (A 51 09 5
in respect of prior years (10) (11)
Changes in estimates of deferred taxation 87 4F [ & IE R T8 {4 51 )
in respect of prior years - (11)
Others Hh 4 -
129 268
Cayman Islands HEHRS
The Company is not subject to taxes on profit, income or RRAFRBERFEEHESN RN - WA R
dividends in the Cayman Islands. B ©
BVI EBELEE
The subsidiary in BVI, SPP Investments, is not subject to MR AEBEREZESWE X ASPP

income tax as it is tax exempted under the laws of BVI.

Singapore

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the principal
operating subsidiary in Singapore, Sunlight Paper, is 17%
(2017: 17%) for FY2018.

Non-deductible expenses mainly relate to private motor vehicles
and related expenses, unrealised foreign exchange differences
and listing expenses.

Investments IRIE LB IE X BE S AR ERE
B MUBZBBUNFTST

o0

AN 3 4% 2 BT BB A B) Sunlight Paper 7Y
018 FEEAMBEMGHERITY%
(20174 17%) °

AAHIB A T2 H RAATE MAERFH
X REBINEZRK EHRAX

2018 % / B (1977) ERBIRDF

103



104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE
for FY2018

2018 &

19

20

(Loss)/Earnings per Share

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
was based on the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
$1,303,000 (2017: profit of $740,000), and a weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding of 800,000,000 (2017:
600,000,000).

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares outstanding in FY2018 and FY2017.

As disclosed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company was incorporated on 21.9.2017, and issued and
allotted one share upon incorporation and 579,999 shares on
11.10.2017. For comparative purposes, the number of shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share for
FY2017 is based on the assumption that (i) the 580,000 shares
are regarded as if they have been in issue since 1.10.2016, and
(ii) in conjunction with the Listing, the capitalisation of share
premium account into 599,420,000 shares on 16.4.2018 are
deemed to be completed on 1.10.2016 as such capitalisation
does not result in a corresponding increase in the resources of
the Group.

Equity-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company by way of written resolutions
passed on 21.3.2018. No share option has been granted since
the commencement of the Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme but does not form part of, nor was it intended
to be, part of the Share Option Scheme nor should it be taken
as affecting the interpretation of the rules of the Share Option
Scheme:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Company.
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2018 BT &

20 Equity-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme and
eligibility criteria

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme to
whom options may be granted by the Board shall include
any directors, employee, executives, officers, suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents, advisers, joint venture
partners and related entities, who at the absolute
discretion of the Board, has contributed to the Group
(“Eligible Person”).

Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of Shares at the time dealings in the Shares
first commence on the Stock Exchange unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person
(including both exercised and outstanding options under
the Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month period (when
aggregated with any Shares subject to options granted
during such period under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company other than those options
granted pursuant to specific approval by the Shareholders
in a general meeting) must not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during the option
period. After the expiration of the option period, no further
options shall be offered or granted but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects. Options granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme shall continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant after
the end of the ten-year period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 A BUAF /E
20 Equity-settled Share-based Payment 20 RBERGHEURND BERNN
Transactions (Continued) KX 5 ()
()  Subscription price (n REE
The subscription price of a Share in respect of any option IRIRIE AR HE 5T 813 0 (] B IR A P
granted under the Share Option Scheme, subject to any R B R BB (R IR B A 5T 2
adjustments made in accordance with the Share Option ATrRAE)REZS2RNEETEN
Scheme, shall be such price as the Board in its absolute B EBERTEER TS
discretion shall determine, provided that such price shall F)BRONREERERBR(KE
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the REFEB)EAEBIFAERARESR
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations FrRUsi(E : (VRPN BEFELER
sheet on the date of grant of the option (which must be a BEHB(WAEAAEXR)ATAMESE
Business Day); (i) the average closing price of the Shares A2 AT B RERTR WS
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet B R(i)RHMEE-  ZHRHER
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the date REMZE LR AL NRE1.008TT -

of grant of the option (which must be a Business Day);
and (jii) the nominal value of the Shares. A consideration
of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of the
grant of an option.

(9) Life of the Share Option Scheme (0) BERESENEMHE

The Company may, by ordinary resolution in general ARR(ERERRERNG @B EER
meeting, or the Board may at any time terminate the W) NEFG AT A LE
operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event st 2R EE - EBRTESEERD
no further option shall be offered or granted but in all SR BB AR - B RERR R B
other respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme FEEMTESEF TR RE
shall remain in full force and effect and options granted o AR RT B4R AT L A
prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and MRAE I BRI BRI 2R AR
exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme. Al F17{F c HEAMERET » BB
Subject to the aforesaid, the Share Option Scheme shall SFEIRRA B B T FRER N E
be valid and effective for a period of ten years Mo BEBEBIASESRHIREER
commencing from the date of adoption, after which T (BREARE T EME S R AR i T &
period no further options will be offered or granted but the BREARENEREMSEMEE
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full Mo 77 T G A+ R T B AR

force and effect in all other respects with respect to
options granted during the life of the Share Option
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 T BUAF 2
21 Significant Related Party Transactions 21 ERXHEERIRS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BiGEPBEREREMAFEREE R
statements, transactions with related parties based on terms BE TR REBE S ETHRSN
agreed between parties are as follows: I
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
$°000 $'000
Tr Tt
Purchases of goods from an entity with ~ AIARA G HREFEEEE SR
a common director as the Company - 1,599
In FY2017, the related party is Sunlight Hygiene Products R2017 B IREE - Bl A OEEERD
(Shenzhen) Limited, which is a supplier to the Group. Mr. Chua RIDBRRAF - BASEBEMHEER - 52
Liang Chui was appointed as director of the supplier on REHRENR20156F7 A15 ABEEZ T AZE
15.7.2015 and ceased to hold such position since 13.6.2017. JEEMESE  WE2017F6 A13BETE
During his directorship, he had not taken any executive or BAEULBGL - MIREEEEHME - RITE
management role in the supplier and had not taken any R FE R AT S B B B 4
remuneration. WS ER A R S B o
The directors are of the opinion that the transactions above EERE LR ZGTRAFTERBRES
have been entered in normal course of businesses and have I HERREGHERE=FETRH
been established on terms and conditions that are not materially BEIWEEREA o
different from those obtainable in transactions with third parties.
As at 30.9.2017, the directors of the Company, Mr. Chua Liang R2017F9HA30H « RABIERERERE L
Sie, Ms. Chua Joo Gek and Mr. Chua Liang Chui, had given A BERERTRERELERAEEHE
personal guarantees to a licensed bank in respect of banking BORITRE M — i RRITEL AL
facilities granted to the Group. The personal guarantees had R BREEEAERD R LRI B A
been released and replaced by corporate guarantee from the SE 2 ERTER o

Company upon Listing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 A BUAF /E
22 Commitments 22 EHE
(a) Capital commitments (@) EARFEE
Capital expenditure contracted for as at the end of the RS BIRE TR & I 15
reporting period but not recognised in the consolidated RERWEARFET T ¢

financial statements is as follows:

2018 2017
2018 2017
$°000 $000
Fr Fit
Capital commitments in respect of TWE - BEREREELD
property, plant and equipment CRINES 11 -

(b) REEEEARE (TUHEE)
EARLE AN
REEHIR - REBF TR RS L
REMEEHIA TR

(b) Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)
Where the Group is the lesseeg,
At the end of the reporting period, the Group is committed
to making the following payments in respect of non-
cancellable operating lease of land:

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 %

$°000 $000

F Tt

Not later than one year TBH—F 34 34
Later than one year and BR—FEMNERREF

not later than five years 134 134

Later than five years BRAF 232 266

400 434

THEENNFERR/I0F LA
EEE - SILHR0F - HENFKB
BeamREE  UkBRmSHES -

The lease of land is for an initial term of 30 years with an
option for a further term of 30 years. Lease payments are
usually adjusted to reflect market rentals.

The lease has no contingent rent provision included in the ERPEESATEE BRI -
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018

2018 BT &

22 Commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)
(Continued)

Where the Group is the lessor,

As at 30.9.2017, the Group had commitment for future
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable

HE ()
(b) (EEIEEEE CRAEE) (5)

EAEBBHEA -
R2017F9A30H » AEBEF T
B EHEB T RECRRKERE

operating lease as follows: FIEAEMNT -
2017
20174
$000
T
Not later than one year TER—F 20

The Group had granted its leasehold building for use as a
mobile base station for a term of one year, with an option
to renew the lease term after the date. The lease ended in
FY2018 and was not renewed.

REEEFEREEFIEABRE AL
Fig - BEI—F WAl REmE A%
EETME - AER 2018 R F E I
o WEELE -
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23 Operating Segments

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker, who
is the Group’s CEO, for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance is specifically focused on the key
products sold, namely, tissue products and hygiene-related
products.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is
included below. Performance is measured based on the
following bases, as included in the internal management reports
that are reviewed by the Group’s CEO. Both segment revenue
and profit are used to measure performance as management
believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating
the level of activities and results of these segments.

o Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
Assistance provided by one segment to another, including
sharing of assets, is not measured.

° The measure used for reporting segment profit is gross
profit.

° Management considers the disclosure of segment assets
and liabilities for tissue products, hygiene-related products
and others respectively is not practical and not
meaningful. Hence, no disclosure of segment assets and
liabilities has been made.

° In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue.

There are no operating segments that have been aggregated to
form the above reportable operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 F &
23 Operating Segments (Continued) 23 EDE (@)
Hygiene-
Tissue related
products products Others Total
BE
BEEESR HEER Hit st
$000 $'000 $'000 $000
Tt i Tt Tt
2018 20184
Revenue from external REINIR R M
customers and reportable KAl 2y Ei e
segment revenue 12,059 1,187 389 13,635
Segment profit 7 505 ) 2,712 372 33 3,117
2017 2017 &
Revenue from external REINPE P R
customers and reportable ] 285 e E
segment revenue 11,030 971 185 12,186
Segment profit 2R A 3,128 363 2 3,493
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit o 2 |7 IEFWE IR
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
Reportable segment profit Al 2D EEF 3,117 3,493
Other income HA U A 441 123
Unallocated expenses RABLF X (4,711) (2,598)
Interest expenses FERZ (21) (10)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation 424K Fi A1 (E518), & F (1,174) 1,008
The Group’s revenue arises from external customers located in AEEKRB IR P BN FT I o
Singapore. The Group carries out its operations in Singapore REERTINEETEE - BASEME
and all of the Group’s non-current assets are located in FEMENE E RTINS ©
Singapore.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 A BUAF /E
23 Operating Segments (Continued) 23 &KEDE ()
Major customers FEERF
The following are major customers with revenue equal to or AR BR 20188 BN F B )k 2017 BT BUF 2
more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue in FY2018 and EAREEBEREBESERAZRI10%MEE
FY2017: BF
2018 2017
2018 2017
$°000 $'000
¥ Fi
Customer A ~alA 1,934 1,730
Customer B NFEIB 1,533 1,393
3,467 3,123
24 Subsidiaries 24 MEBARR]
Details of the subsidiaries at the end of the financial year are: KA BRFERNMBARFER
Country of
incorporation/
Principal place
of business Particulars of
and form issued and fully
of business paid up share  Percentage
Name Principal activities structure capital of equity held
AMRLER/
TEXBUER BEAR il
#e TEEY ERRBFE  SERENFHE ERi
2018
2018%
%
Held by the Company HEARMES
SPP Investments Limited © SPP Investments Limited @ Investment holding BVI/Singapore,  $1 100
REER limited lialoility
company
AERTHE/
M BREE
NS
Held by SPP Investments Limited £ SPP Investments Limited f 55
Sunlight Paper Products Pte. Ltd. ©  Sunlight Paper Products Pte. Ltd. ®  Supply of tissue products to Singapore/ $580,000 100
corporate customers Singapore,
ACERPHEFESER  lmited liabilty
company
VeI
BREEAHA
@ Not required to be audited @ BAETINEZ
© Audited by Foo Kon Tan LLP, a principal member firm of HLB © FFoo Kon Tan LLP CE{EBIBR = 2K 8)
International EZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R M EE

for FY2018

2018 F &

25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group has documented financial risk management policies.
These policies set out the Group’s overall business strategies
and its risk management philosophy. The Group is exposed to
financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and market price
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise adverse effects from the unpredictability of financial
markets on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these
financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity
analysis for interest rate risk (Note 25(c)) and foreign currency
risk (Note 25(d)).

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes or to hedge against
fluctuations, if any, in interest rates and foreign exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018

2018 T F &

25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the Group to incur a financial loss. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other
receivables. For trade receivables, the Group adopts the
practice of dealing only with those customers of
appropriate credit history, and obtaining sufficient security
where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. For other
financial assets, the Group adopts the policy of dealing
only with high credit quality counterparties.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual growth while
minimising losses incurred due to increased credit risk
exposure.

The Group has established a credit policy under which
the creditworthiness of each new customer is evaluated
individually before the Group grants credit to the
customer. Credit limits are established for each customer,
which represents the maximum open amount without
requiring approval from the directors. Payments will be
required to be made upfront by customers which do not
meet the Group’s credit requirements.

Amounts due from customers are closely monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis to identify any non-payment
or delay in payment, and to understand the reasons, so
that appropriate actions can be taken promptly. Through
on-going credit monitoring and existing collection
procedures in place, credit risk is mitigated substantially.

The Group’s trade receivables comprise one major debtor
(2017: one major debtor) that represented 16% (2017:
20%) of trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018

2018 BT &

25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether there is any objective
evidence that trade and other receivables are impaired,
and determines the amount of impairment loss as a result
of the inability of the debtors to make required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of the trade
receivable balances, creditworthiness of the debtors and
historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions of
the debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.

Amount not paid after the credit period granted will be
considered past due. The credit terms granted to
customers are based on the Group’s assessment of their
creditworthiness and in accordance with the Group’s

policy.

In determining the recoverability of trade and other
receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade and other receivables from the date
credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other receivables. The main components of this
allowance are a specific loss component that relates to
individually significant exposures.

The allowance account in respect of trade and other
receivables is used to record impairment losses unless
the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the amount
owing is possible. At that point, the financial asset is
considered irrecoverable and the amount charged to the
allowance account is written off against the carrying
amount of the impaired financial asset.

25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018

2018 T F &

25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Exposure to credit risk

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum
exposure to credit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of
financial instruments presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group’s major classes of financial assets are bank
deposits and trade receivables. Cash is held with
established financial institutions. Further details of credit
risks on trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note
5.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated
with financial instruments that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result
from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to
its fair value.

The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and
liabilities. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of stand-by credit facilities.

SUNLIGHT (1977) HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

25 B[R

(a)

(b)

o e 1 B IR M IBUR ()

FERE (&)

FrE g1z B R

m%$%liﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ'%

X%ﬂW%IEE%MEmCT
TAW%#R%%EW&ﬁWFI

AMEREE

AEBENTEMBEERRNRRITE
PR EZEKIE - ReFRNER
BRI HE - B 5 R EMREKFIA
B EERRE — PRBIR TS o

MREBE SR
MBETRBEAEENERESIA
R T ARRRERERRXMNR
ERE—WHEELTENMEER
HoER - RBESREBRATERAE
B ARV BEERXTERLSER
HRRHEMES -

AEERENRBECRBEERE
MBEEREBIHSHENERE - A
SENARAEBERBEREERR
MIFESHBTEER M ZHNF
fa



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 T BUAF 2
25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 25 BFFsREBR B IR B AR MR (g)
Policies (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEBESERRE)
The table below analyses the maturity profile of the TROMAEEIZREHARMIRRER
Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual EHHENUBABNIEBER
undiscounted cash flows:
Carrying Contractual Less than Between 1
amount  cash flows 1year and5years
&8 BeReE 15#%
IREE HERE 15R B5FR
$000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T Fr
2018 2018
Non-derivative financial  FfTEMBKER
liabilities
Borrowings (Note 10) fam (M 10) 430 457 125 332
Trade and other payables B 5 K H e 5008
(Note 11) GESRD) 2,432 2,432 2,432 -
2,862 2,889 2,557 332
2017 2017
Non-derivative financial ~ F{TEMBERB
liabilities
Borrowings (Note 10) B (HEE10) 135 143 126 17
Trade and other payables B5 N EMENTIE
(Note 11) (BFsE11) 3,873 3,873 3,873 -
4,007 4,016 3,999 17

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the
maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at

significantly different amounts.

The Group ensures that there are adequate funds to meet

all its obligations in a timely and cost-effective manner.

The Group maintains sufficient level of cash and cash

equivalents and has available adequate amount of

committed credit facilities from financial institutions to

meet its working capital requirements.

BHHHASTHESRETEXR
BlRFER TS HEATROSFEE
Ao

AEBEREZOESRFEMARAK
M BITE A ASE - AEBMER
RHNRERIBEHFEYKY - LB
FHRAANDAESREIBEERE
NENEZEESHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of the Group’s financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank balances at floating rates. Finance leases and
bank loan bear interest at fixed rates. All other financial
assets and liabilities are interest-free.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of
the interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

25 BisEREIEBZENREBER @)

(c)

M=m

MERBAREEG B TANRFE
FARKRR e REERT ST EEB) ML
TR B o

AEBEMEBHOFNERREZREF
BRTTHEER - MERERRITERTD
REEMERGE - IERMUMBEE
;rEERRE -

R|EHR - ARMBTANKREE

2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 ¢
$°000 $000
T Tt
Fixed rate instruments EETH
Financial assets WREE
— fixed deposit — TEIER 6,835 -
Financial liabilities WaE
— obligations under finance leases — BEHEERE (16) (135)
— bank loan — RITER (414) -
(430) (135)
Variable rate instruments ZETH
Financial assets BB EE
— bank balances — RITHE 816 3,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018

2018 BT &

25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period
would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been 100 (2017: 100) basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s results net of
tax and equity would have been $8,000 (2017: $31,000)
higher/lower, arising as a result of higher/lower interest
income from floating rate bank balances.

The magnitude represents management’s assessment of
the likely movement in interest rates under normal
economic conditions. This analysis has not taken into
account the associated tax effects and assumes that all
other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain
constant.

The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable
interest rates available without increasing its interest rate
exposure.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises when
transactions are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising
from transactions that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries, SGD. The foreign currencies in which these
transactions are denominated are primarily HKD and
MYR.

25 B E ke

(c)

(d)

0B 1 B AR SRR ()

F=mb(8)
EBTAMN-FEHBESNT
AEE L EB IR A TFESARR
WESBEEXNBEIR - Bt - &
RO EZEBH I EFERE -

JEB T AN TFEHEE ST
PR ISR - i F =0, R 4 100
& (2017 & : 100 1&) 2 - EFTA H

B TENBERT - NEBRNR
TIE MR B EEZE MR R
8,000t (20174 : 31,0007T) * & A
FEARITH MR B UL A N,
9\0

ZRERREEBEFEEEREE
BT Al ge LIRS B ETAE UL
DT R AR B E - WRR
FTEEM2B(LARER)ERFT

S B RO SR AT T A0 B
R TEEREENE -

SRR

HNERBR R TAEEREXZH
TRERER - B AINEFHE
Alg HBRINERR

RNEBREAARRQE KR EM B A R4
BRI TT AN EEHENR S
MEERSMEERR - ZEXH5E
BB TS EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 A BUAF /E
25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 25 BFFsREBREIE B AR MR (g
Policies (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) MERER(E)
Consequently, the Group is exposed to movements in Hit - ANEEEERINEE RS E AR
foreign currency exchange rates. R o
The Group’s exposures in financial instruments to various AEEPG BT ABEBRASEINER
foreign currencies are as follows: SN
HKD MYR
BT <HE
$'000 $'000
T T
2018 2018
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 6,921 -
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E bR A - (41)
Net exposure SR 6,921 (41)
2017 2017 &
Trade and other payables B 5 K E AR A - (60)
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk YN S 15 B B0 B S T
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRIREFRBEM2HIEMNER
reasonably possible change in the HKD and MYR T AEENBRHIERERBESE
exchange rates (against SGD), with all other variables held HWETRSTER(HEITMEIT) D
constant, of the Group’s results net of tax and equity. SIRRREE BN HURE o
2018 2017
2018 5 2017
$°000 $'000
Fx FT
HKD — strengthened 5% (2017: 5%) 7t — FHE5% (2017 £ : 5%) 346 -
— weakened 5% (2017: 5%) — B2 {E5% (20174 : 5%) (346) -
MYR — strengthened 5% (2017: 5%) <& — FHE5% (20174 : 5%) 2 3)
— weakened 5% (2017: 5%) — AZ1E5% (2017 4F : 5%) 2 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 A F/E
25 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 25 BAFSEBREIE B AZE MBUR ()
Policies (Continued)
() Market price risk (e) TWHBERER
Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial TGEXRRR AV EIAEEBERNTS

instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices. EBREBMESNREE -

A& E I A TR E ek Al K&
BITARE RS EmMBETSERE
HIERR

The Group does not hold any quoted or marketable
financial instruments, hence, is not exposed to any
movement in market prices.

26 Capital Management 26 BEARNEIRE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: AEEEBRESNERR -

(@) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going @ REAREBNIFELERT
concern;

(b)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; b) ZRFAEEMZEMER:

(©)  To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the () IRMEEARLAINEAEE M ELSE IR
Group’s risk management capability; and Ik

(d)  To provide an adequate return to shareholders. d AREREFTEDEH -

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its REBERBRBEHRN MEEEERNGEE -

capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and WERAEERENERFTRRE R W

shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital BRINTEEIM ARG N - EEEER SR

requirements of the Group, and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt any formal
dividend policy.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the financial year.

B FEHEARXIARFARERIRERS -
RARREFRENENEBRERE R
REE B AT S SREE (] IE RS EUR -

AEEMNERNERFHR AT BFEE AL
MU o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmRME

for FY2018
2018 T F &

26 Capital Management (Continued) 26
The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt comprises
borrowings and trade and other payables, less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital represents equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

BRER @)
REELET NN BEAT K o

AEEMNAEERBLLRERES  F
BERBRARERINFETR - FEBBRE
RARE 5 R EMENFRARRE KRS
EEY - LEREARREHE ARG

2018 2017

2018 2017 &

$°000 $000

Fr Fr

Borrowings EEN 430 135

Trade and other payables B 5 R EAM R FRIE 2,432 3,873

Total debt BriE 2,862 4,008

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReMReEEYD (7,668) (3,095)

Net (cash)/debt F(Re) MEB (4,806) 913
Equity attributable to owners of KRABIER AR

the Company 14,297 8,041

Total capital and net (cash)/debt BEARRF (Re) B 9,491 8,954

Gearing ratio ERAELE N.M. 0.10

N.M. denotes not meaningful
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RRE

for FY2018
2018 /&
27 Financial Instruments 27 M IA
Accounting classifications of financial assets and M EERVBEENETSE
financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities ZRERMEEENYBEENERBRENDT ¢

in each category are as follows:

Financial Other
liabilities liabilities Total
Loans and at amortised outside scope carrying
receivables cost of IAS 39 amount
BRE TR
REBSHER A E39KEE
EXRR HIER /Y BUMA E At
A EEN BEEE afE EREEAR
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T Fr Fr
2018 2018 F
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & H el 5018 2,486 - - 2,486
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RIRESZEY 7,668 - - 7,668
Obligations under RMEMEEAE
finance leases - - (16) (16)
Bank loan RITER - (414) - 414)
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E s fE R 5IE - (2,432) - (2,/432)
10,154 (2,846) (16) 7,292
2017 2017 F
Trade and other receivables & 5 I H b fE Y378 1,893 - - 1,893
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RIREEED 3,095 - - 3,095
Obligations under A EAIE
finance leases - - (135) (135)
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR FRIE - (3,873) - (3,873)
4,088 (3,873) (135) 980
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018

2018 A BUAF /E

27 Financial Instruments (Continued) 27 MBI EuWm
Fair values AFE
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities with a R—FRE BN BEERMBAENR
maturity of less than one year is assumed to approximate their HEREAELEABEES

fair values.

However, the Group does not anticipate that the carrying
amounts recorded at the end of the reporting period would be
significantly different from the values that would eventually be
received or settled.

The face value less any estimated credit adjustments for
financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one
year, comprising trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, short-term borrowings, and trade and other
payables, are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as is prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on
observable market date.

SUNLIGHT (1977) HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 ML AF [
27 Financial Instruments (Continued) 27 HIBIEAEW®@)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEERSE(E)
Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for WIRAFEAZERBEE R AN B
which fair values are disclosed * BEENAE"
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R EPE KT et
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fi i i i
2018 2018 F
Bank loan RITER 414 - 414
2017 2017 5
Obligations under RMEMREAE
finance leases 135 - 135
* Exclude financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying * FE 3L E AR A A S A A Tl
amounts measured on the amortised cost basis approximate HEMREERTKaE BERARS
their fair values due to their short-term or repayable on demand BEEERIRERES  BMESEY
nature and where the effect of discounting is immaterial TEA
The carrying amounts of interest-bearing loans that reprice REBEHER ANl REEHTaES
within six months of the end of the reporting period approximate EEERE AT ERE FEEtit ey
their fair values. The fair values of all other interest-bearing loans A F(E T RIEEL I FE R AL N F
are calculated based on discounted expected future principal B4 REHY .
and interest cash flows.
28 Dividends 28 & E

In FY2017, the Group’s subsidiary, Sunlight Paper, declared
interim dividend of $3.50 per share amounting to $2,030,000 to
the then shareholders. No dividends were declared for FY2018.

R20O1I7THI B FE - RE B E QA
Sunlight Paper [A]% i I% 3 & Ik 7 BRR% 2.
f%3.507T © & ££2,030,000 7T > 7201884
WEE  SiEsSIRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRE

for FY2018
2018 T F &

29 Statement of Financial Position of the Company 29 AR BB kN3

2018

2018 4F

$'000

FT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE

Investment in subsidiary

R—REMERRHRE

Current assets REEE

Prepayments AT RR 11

Amount due from a subsidiary (non-trade) JEW —RIWBARKEGEES) 6,828

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 71
6,910

Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals and other payables FERT B R I B th FE (< 508 83

83

Net current assets REBEEFHE 6,827

Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBES 6,827

Net assets EERE 6,827

EQUITY =

Equity attributable to owners of the Company &R R#EH A EEHER

Share capital & < 1,338

Reserves B 5,489

Total equity A 6,827

* less than $1,000 L1 1,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

for FY2018
2018 BT &

29 Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)
The Company was incorporated on 21.9.2017 with one
subscriber share of par value HK$0.01 issued. There were no
activities thereafter, until the Reorganisation on 11.10.2017.
Accordingly, at 30.9.2017, it had no assets, liabilities or
distributable reserves.

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board on 14.12.2018 and was signed on its
behalf.

Chua Liang Sie
ERE

Director

BE

29 AABIFBEAARK (&)

RAFR2017 49 A 21 BeEfAk L - Wk
T—REEACOIBITRERD - HiEH
E2017F10A11 HEART W EIFE o
It - B2017F9A30H » ARRWEEE -
BENAI IR ©

RABHERREREHEFSH20184F
12814888 TRREFEEE -

Chua Liang Chui
ERB

Director

BE
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HRERBE
RESULTS E 4
FY2018 FY2017 FY2016
2018 2017 2016
MREFEE FREE VREE
$°000 $000 $'000
Fr FIT FIt
Revenue Wezs 13,635 12,186 12,343
Profit/(Loss) for the year FRm A, CaF) (1,303) 740 1,267
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER & E Iz, (F518) 4&28
for the year (1,303) 548 1,088
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At At At
30.9.2018 30.9.2017 30.9.2016
A 2018 F R2017 4 #2016 4
9H30H 9H30H 9H30H
$°000 $'000 $'000
Frx Fi Tt
Total assets BEEEE 18,325 13,383 15,587
Total liabilities B fE4E4E (4,028) (5,342) (6,064)
Total equity e iEEE 14,297 8,041 9,523

SUNLIGHT (1977) HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018



DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

BREREMAR

In this report, the following expressions shall have the meanings set out below unless the context requires otherwise.

EARRET - BRIFEXESBALE

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

[ARRI ] 2 [ R2 AR A )

“ASEAN”

(R

“associate(s)”
[BFEE A

“Audit Committee”
[BZEZEE]

“Board of Directors” or “Board”
E=3-

“Business Day(s)” or “business day(s)”

[&%A8]

“BVI’
[RBREZAS]

e

EEBMTEE -

articles of association of our Company adopted on 21.3.2018 and which
became effective on the Listing Date, as amended from time to time
72018F 3 A21 BEM KA L BHARR A A AR el A =2 A A (BE BT

the Association of Southeast Asia Nations, established on 8.8.1967, the
member states of which comprise Brunei Darussalam, the Kingdom of
Cambodia, the Republic of Indonesia, Lao People’s Democratic Republic,
Malaysia, the Republic of the Union of Myanmar, the Republic of the
Philippines, Singapore, the Kingdom of Thailand and the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam

RAEDERKE  R1967F8ASHKY - KERBEXKESEME « R
ETE - NERADHME - ZBARREHME - FREE - AN
CJEEBEHME - K REEREELE E R LR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules
A6 GEM LR AR T /0% %

the audit committee of our Board
EEERTE%EZES

the board of Directors of our Company
RARESRE

any day(s) (excluding Saturday(s), Sunday(s) or public holiday(s) in Hong
Kong) on which licensed banks in Hong Kong are generally open for business
throughout their normal business hours

ERFRBRIT RN ERCERHERBMEEFZNEMNAF(IREL8X
EHAREELAREE)

the British Virgin Islands
KBRS

2018 % / B (1977) ERBIRDF
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

“CG Code”
[fxERTAl

“China” or “PRC”

[ Ed ]

“close associate(s)”
[EEBEA
“Companies Ordinance”
IPNCIEESN

» o«

“Company”,

» o

our Company”, “we” or “us”

NI E= A4

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ AR

“core connected person(s)”
[0 AT

“Deed of Non-competition”

[T 3R

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules
GEM ErT#R AT 8+ R AT X Ba~r A

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report and for
geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
mEARANE  giAmEms MEHRWIE2ENE - TEEEE  RFEE

ek
=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules
HA GEM 5 AP IR T #9082

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or modified from time to time
RARER] ~ RS FBENIFE 622 F 2 7HEDI

Sunlight (1977) Holdings Limited (B ¥t (1977) =B R /2 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21.9.2017 with limited
liability
BRXOATNIERAERAT - R2017F9 A21 BEMENSTMK UM ER RS
[N

has the meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules and unless the
context requires otherwise, refers to Mr. LS Chua, Ms. Chua, Mr. LC Chua,
Mr. Pang and YJH Group. Mr. LS Chua, Ms. Chua, Mr. LC Chua, Mr. Pang
and YJH Group are a group of controlling shareholders
HBEGEM E TR A THRE - MIENES B BERERE Bt
ERPRE TERERYIHER - ERBRLE - BT BRPALE  ZhE
K YIH S Bl 7 — AR IR AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules
BB GEM LR ISR T 5% %

the deed of non-competition dated 21.3.2018 and executed by our
Controlling Shareholders in favour of our Company (for ourselves and as
trustee for our subsidiaries)

EREBERUAER B AZHA (BEARIRIEREMBARNEEA) LB E
7201843 A 21 AN THFRIE
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

BREREMAR

“Director(s)”
[EF]

“ERP”
[ERP]

“FY2017”
[2017 U |

“FY2018”
[2018 I L/ |

“FY2019”
[2019 0/ L/ |

“GDP”
[ A ERE)

“GEM”
[GEM]

“GEM Listing Rules”

[GEM LAl

“GFA”
[ZEmiE ]

“Group”, “our Group”, “we

(SR ] =k T3]

“HKD” or “HK$”
B bl

the director(s) of our Company
KAFIEE

enterprise resource planning
BEEIRTE

financial year ended 30.9.2017
HZE2017F9 A30 AL BFE

financial year ended 30.9.2018
EHZ=2018F 9 A30 A LM BFE

financial year ending 30.9.2019
HZE2019F9 AS0 B LM BFE

gross domestic product
i A EABE

GEM operated by the Stock Exchange
Fh B A2 P& (E EY GEM

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM, as amended,
supplemented or modified from time to time
ERREET ~ RESHA GEME S LR A

gross floor area
BEEE

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where the context so requires, with
respect to the period before which our Company became the holding
company of our current subsidiaries, our Company’s current subsidiaries or
the businesses operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the
case may be)

RARRENBRR  SiMXESEME  RARRKBHEBNERRE
BABZATEIE - BIIEALRRREMBARKZEMBARKEAMS 2E (R
BRI E ) EITH TS

Hong Kong dollars and cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEEEEE BT RABL

2018 % / B (1977) ERBIRDF
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

BEREMAR

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
(&

“IFRSs”
[ BRI eR 22

“independent third party(ies)”
[BE=7]

H\JTC”
[JTC]

“Listing”
[ )

“Listing Date”
[ £ A A

“Main Board”

[ER]

“Memorandum” or “Memorandum of
Association”
[ K4 sk [ =R R4

“Mr. LC Chua”

[BERPRAE]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEFEES TR

International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board
B & 5 AR B 2= B g 78 4 a0 B R B4 7% sl S 2 R

party(ies) which are not connected person(s) of our Company
WIERRBIEEA T AL

JTC Corporation (formerly known as Jurong Town Corporation)
JTC Corporation (A Jurong Town Corporation)

the listing of the Shares on GEM
A% 5 P GEM £

16.4.2018, the date on which the Shares are listed on GEM
2018F 4 H16 H + IR GEM LT H i

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with GEM. For
the avoidance of doubt, the Main Board excludes GEM

B P EMRE TS (TN EEETS) - BB P GEM I 88 B0 17 E
1B REIRE - EMAEHEGEM

memorandum of association of our Company adopted on 21.3.2018 and
which became effective on the Listing Date, as amended from time to time
RATP2018F 3 A 21 RERMMAMER RN - B L h BERER - AR
Hl

Mr. Chua Liang Chui (332 R 4t 4), an executive Director, one of our
Controlling Shareholders, the younger brother of Ms. Chua and Mr. LS Chua
and uncle of Mr. WH Chua

WITEERER —BIERBERER DAL - RELTRERBAENEBRE
SO S HERILR
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

BREREMAR

“Mr. LS Chua”

[BERBTAE]

“Mr. Pang”

(2]

“Mr. WH Chua”

[ 30854

“Ms. Chua”

E-Joqunl

“MYR” or “RM”
[BRAESH

1

“Nomination Committee’

[fR2EZEg]

‘pa.
(4]

“Prospectus”
[fARERR]

“Remuneration Committee”

(HMEZES

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
[ARE]

Mr. Chua Liang Sie (2% R & 5t 4), an executive Director, chairman of our
Board and chief executive officer of our Company and one of our Controlling
Shareholders, the younger brother of Ms. Chua and elder brother of Mr. LC
Chua, and the father of Mr. WH Chua

WITES FFEIR  THERFEP - E2ERRRERBEE  RELL
BRREE » R PRI NI BSOS S A SR

Mr. Pang Fook Kiau (alias Ang Fook Tiam) (24878 9t & ), one of the founders
of our Group and one of our Controlling Shareholders
AEBHFP—ZEIHARE R — R RIRREZRAR T HE (X & Ang Fook Tiam)

Mr. Chua Wenhao (alias Cai Wenhao) (%% X % 5t 4 ), an executive Director,
the son of Mr. LS Chua and the nephew of Ms. Chua and Mr. LC Chua
WITEEEUELE  AERBAENREFURELLIRERPLENER

Ms. Chua Joo Gek (%1 22 1-), an executive Director, one of our Controlling
Shareholders, the elder sister of Mr. LS Chua and Mr. LC Chua and the aunt
of Mr. WH Chua

WITEREMELT @ RERBEERERPEENRE RESUEEENTE

Malaysian dollars and cents, the lawful currency of Malaysia
BARAREEES K RAR TR

the nomination committee of our Board
EESRETHIREZEY

per annum or per year
BF

the prospectus of the Company dated 27.3.2018
AARBER2018F 3 A 27 AR ETR

the remuneration committee of our Board
EECETHFMHNEZES

the lawful currency of the PRC
HBUEE B
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“Reorganisation”

[E4]

“Required Standard of Dealings”
[ 2 5 W <TIR%E

“S$” or “SGD” or “$”
(4] sk ¥ sk [T

“Share(s)”
[ %17 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
e

“Share Offer”
A& 3E ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[ RkEsT 3

“Singapore”
[

“SPP Investments”
[ SPP Investments |

“Sq.m."

BT

the corporate reorganisation of our Group in preparation for the Listing as
described under the section “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure —
Reorganisation” of the Prospectus

FEBRERLITMETHRARER  FEHANBRERIESL - EERAF]
2R — SHE] -8

the required standard of dealings regarding securities transactions by the
Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
GEM EMRAIFE 548 Z 067 IRFIHEFHITES R HNRH L TFIRE

Singapore dollar(s), the lawful currency of Singapore

FINOE TE B BT T

ordinary share(s) of par value HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our
Company
RAFIRRAR FRREE0.01 BTh) I imR

holder(s) of Shares
AESTEDN

the public offer and placing of Shares in connection with the Listing
BLEMAREE MR ERD

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on
21.3.2018, a summary of principal terms of which is set out in “E. Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus

RATR2018F 3 21 B A RM MR BAELT & - A 2RFUREHNA
RERKMSED [E BAERT S

the Republic of Singapore
7N AL

SPP Investments Limited, a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability
on 6.10.2017 and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

SPP Investments Limited * #2017 F 10 A6 BERBE L A B MK N AE R
DR ARARNEERSENB AR

square metre(s)
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS
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“Stock Exchange” or “SEHK” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ B 32 AT BERBMAERSHMBRAF
“subsidiary(ies)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Companies Ordinance
=GR BB REVEPIFTE T o RE

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”

[EERIR

“Sunlight Paper”

[ Sunlight Paper |

“United States” or “U.S.”

[ ]

“USD” or “US$”
[UsSDJ sk [USS$]

“YJH Group”

[YIH&EE ]

sgp
(%]

“airlaid napkin”
[ EE 2 AR

“conventional roll tissue”
[EREREER]

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules
H7A GEM L5 AP IR T #9082

Sunlight Paper Products Pte. Ltd., a company incorporated in Singapore
with limited liability on 8.7.1977 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

Sunlight Paper Products Pte. Ltd. * 721977 7 A 8 BTEFT i =ML K B R
DA ARRAFNMEEZENE AR

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction
EFRERE HEL - B EASHEREEENAIE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
EEETEBET

YJH Group Limited, a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability on
31.8.2017, one of our Controlling Shareholders, and is owned as to
approximately 37.93% by Mr. LS Chua, 17.24% by Ms. Chua, 17.24% by
Mr. LC Chua and 27.59% by Mr. Pang

YJH Group Limited * 7201748 831 B ERBEREZHE MK ZNER AR
REP—ZERRE  HERBLESE Bt BERPEEREZEEDHNESR
#737.93% + 17.24% ~ 17.24% [ 27.59% Ky P& 4

per cent
Bt

napkin made from fluff pulp with good water absorption properties
MAEREKHED - BB RIFHTKIEEE

toilet tissue that is commonly used at home
ENGEN RS
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BEREMAR

“jumbo roll tissue” or “JRT” toilet tissue that is commonly used in public toilet cubicles of commercial
buildings

[ KRB REEH] [EEFNEUNEIEN)EIES

“paper pulp” or “pulp” the raw material used to produce tissue paper, which includes recycle pulp,
soft wood pulp, hard wood pulp, virgin pulp, fluff pulp and mixed pulp

[ 452 ] SEGEAMARME - SIEDUAEE SRS RS RELSE A
ERRBAHE

Notes: M

—  all dates are shown in d/dd.m/mm.yyyy format — FARXBHHAA A/ EFRART

— all figures shown in $'m, $ million, $'000 and % are approximates - FIEEET  TkaohsallE
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